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In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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Financial Results and Business Review

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$504.4 million
(2018: HK$528.4 million) and a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$73.7 million (2018: HK$108.1 million). Details of the financial results
and business performance and development are set out in the Directors’ Report

on pages 54 to 72.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.22 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$0.23 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.22 per share during the year
(2018: HK$0.23 per share), the total distribution will be HK$0.44 per share
for the year (2018: HK$0.46 per share).

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 10 September 2019.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and a petrol-

filling station. The centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises responsibilities to its shareholders™*

and
is therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices
and procedures, and identified and formalised appropriate measures and

policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk
management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the
management, the Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation
in their capacity as Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from
taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is,
subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. In view of the above, the Board considers that the Directors’

exposure to risk is manageable.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”) throughout this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by

two individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) with differing expertise/
calibre who can provide a “check and balance” effect on the management
through their high attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring
a balance of power. Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of
Directors is of the view that the current structure does not have any adverse
effect on the Company and believes that this structure enables the Group to

make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision A.6.5: All directors should participate

in continuous professional development and provide

the issuer with a record of training they received

All Directors participated in continuous professional development and
provided the Company with their training record as required except that one

of the Directors was unable to do so due to health reason.

Given that the Director concerned is a Non-executive Director (“NED”)
and his health condition has deteriorated to the state that he has not
been able to attend meetings of the Board for more than six consecutive
months, in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company, the Board has resolved to vacate his office with effect from
26 June 2019. Upon the passing of the said resolution, he ceased to be a

NED of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision A.6.7: Independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
not only give the board and any committees on which
they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation, but also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders

Except for the only NED of the Company being unable to attend the
Company’s meetings due to health reason since November 2018, the INEDs
of the Company had full attendance at board meetings, board committee

meetings and annual general meeting held during the year.

Having given due consideration to the current health condition of the
NED and his inability to attend meetings of the Board for more than six
consecutive months, in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Board has resolved to vacate his office
with effect from 26 June 2019. Upon the passing of the said resolution, he

ceased to be a NED of the Company.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does not
pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the disclosure
of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision C.2.5: Issuer should have an internal
audit function and review the need for one in case of
its absence annually

At present, the Company does not have an internal audit function. The Board
reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit function in March 2019
and considered that there was no such an immediate need after taking into
account the Group’s current circumstances, such as the focused nature and
geographical spread of business, the relatively simple operating structure
and small size of the Group and the close involvement and supervision
of the management in daily operation, which could provide sufficient risk
management and internal control for the Group. Despite it, the Board has
taken initiatives to promote the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by creating a control environment
across the Group (such as building up a corporate culture based on
sound business ethics and accountability through the implementation of
“whistle-blowing” arrangements and procedure manuals with defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines) and putting control activities in place (such
as conducting group-wide risk assessment exercise regularly). In addition,
where the external auditor of the Company considers any internal controls
that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements, it will report to the
audit committee any significant deficiencies in internal control identified

during the audit.

In view of the above considerations and the potential cost to be involved, the
Board is of the opinion that it is not cost effective to set up and maintain an
internal audit function and that the existing control mechanism could justify
its absence for the time being. Nonetheless, the Board will review the need

for an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the Deputy Chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the Deputy
Chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the Deputy Chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the Deputy Chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors (except the NED
who is unable to do so due to health reason) have confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2019

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charlesa

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Wong Yiu Tak

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles was vacated from his office as a Director of the
Company on 26 June 2019 pursuant to Article 87(C) of the Articles of Association
of the Company due to his long absence from board meetings.

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,
overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and
management performance, corporate governance, risk management and

internal control systems of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the Board
has established three committees, namely the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the audit committee. NEDs (including INEDs)
are invited to serve on these Board committees according to the benefits
brought by their participation in view of their individual experience and
skills. To assist the committees in discharging their roles adequately, each
committee is provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines for its
members to follow in the process of decision-making. Duties and authorities
of these committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference.
To keep the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these

committees are required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Group.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019 on a going concemn basis, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the changes in
accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.
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EEgwm Board of Directors (continued)

RABIEREERBA BN - AEIEAER The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records

M AN £ B M B R AR B E - AR which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of

AR AN B A S B I S R (E L R R A (A AR the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting

PERET6E EFES2B MBI ZEEMRENR - responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 76 to 82.

REBE_FE—NFZA=Z+—HLUBFER Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
AABIRBHEANESeeRm(HEPWiasce general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2019.
#IR —//\Hx$7(@ c REERAFELHFEES Individual attendance of the Directors at board meetings, board committee

e EFgETNLZEggzREAFERE meetings and annual general meeting in the year under review is set out

SOERINE ¢ below:

LREEAY FEREESENY
Meetings attended/eligible to attend

gxg FMzeg REZZEE BRZEE RRATAE
Remuneration Nomination Audit Annual General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Y & TEER
HEZSE  YREMSE ay
Covering
corporate
=z governance- Covering
Directors related matters  other matters Total
HITEE
Executive Directors
EREEE (27) 2/2 3/4 5/6 TER 3/3 TER 11
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chaimmary) NA NA
SRRt (BEE) 2/2 4/4 6/6 TER 3/3 TEA 1
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Dgouty Chaimar) NA NA
EMmELE 1/2 4/4 5/6 NEf NaRA TNEA 11
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi NA NA NA
BYEALE 22 474 6/6 T TR TEA 1/1
Mr Cheong Sim Lam NA NA NA
BB/ ME 2/2 44 6/6 TEA TNaA TER 17
Miss Cheong Chong Ling NA NA NA
FHTEE
Non-executive Director
AR 1/2 2/4 3/6 1/3 TiEA 2/4 1/1
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles NA
BUHHTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE 212 4/4 6/6 3/3 33 4/4 1/1
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
HRERE 212 4/4 6/6 33 33 4/4 1/1
Mr Wong Yiu Tak
il oy 212 4/4 6/6 3/3 33 4/4 11
Mr Tse Pang Yuen
SREY 2 4 8 3 3 4 1

Total number of meetings

12 Tian Teck Land Limited XZibEHR QT
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Board of Directors (continued)

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars and a guide published by the Companies Registry
S0 as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to Directors’ duties and
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates directly or through other professionals
to the Board as and when necessary. During the financial year ended
31 March 2019, not only did the Company organise in-house training
courses in relation to corporate governance, rules and regulations for the
Directors, it also provided them with “Director E-training” as composed by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. For the purpose of ensuring
adequacy of training received by the Directors, the Board conducted a
review thereon. Other than the foregoing, the Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums and conferences
on their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the Company, subject

to the Company’s policy.
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EE= g Board of Directors (continued)
REE-_Z—NWF=A=1+—"HUEFHFE & Training™*® ' received by the Directors during the financial year ended
EERTIEIC 2REgmT 31 March 2019 is set out below:

RAARE
HERRE HttTHAR/
wag/ BEAL
e BEER EHE®
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading other executives/
BE Directors conferences materials professionals
HITEE Executive Directors
ERELE(FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
BT E(FFE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N N
IS A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N J
BEETE Mr Cheong Sim Lam N N
[N ] Miss Cheong Chong Ling N J
FHNTEE Non-executive Director
HAER L™ Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles"*"*?
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N
ERELE Mr Wong Yiu Tak
T E Mr Tse Pang Yuen
1 FUREAEIEEA) D EEAMQIEN RERIE Note 1: The training mentioned herein is relevant to (1) corporate governance and
B - (2) rules and regulations.
2 GEMAEREZEREEAKRERADRREEEIR Note 2: Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles was unable to provide the Company with his training
&% o record due to health reason.
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The NED is appointed for a term of one year (though he was vacated from
office pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company on 26 June
2019) whilst INEDs are appointed for the period commencing from the
conclusion of one annual general meeting to the conclusion of the following
annual general meeting. According to the Company’s Articles of Association,
they are required to retire by rotation, but remain eligible for re-election, at

least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each INED about his
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
each of them to be independent. One of the INEDs possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and senior management of suitable calibre by remunerating them
at a competitive level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established
a remuneration committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no
Director or his/her associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating

to his/her own remuneration.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three INEDs. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Wong Yiu Tak and
Mr Tse Pang Yuen. The main duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the terms of reference
of the committee; to assist the Company in formulating remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management; to review and
approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management; to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the NED and INEDs; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee
on the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi
Hong whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration
committee alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of
NED and INEDs annually. For all other staff, it is the Executive Directors who
fix their remuneration packages on the recommendations of their respective

department heads on an annual basis.

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 25 to the financial
statements on page 151, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference of the
committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management; and made recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of both the NED and INEDs. The attendance
record of each remuneration committee member is set out in the table on

page 12.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three INEDs. The members are Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee
chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Wong Yiu
Tak and Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of INEDs; to assess the mix in terms of gender, age and
qualifications required on the Board; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the chief executive, and on the need of setting measurable objectives
for implementing the Board diversity policy. Details of the nomination
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The
said terms of reference are published on the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Nomination committee (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
put forward recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assessed the independence of the INEDs; and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments of the INEDs,

NED and Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.

To ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company, a nomination policy
which delineates the procedures and criteria for nomination of Directors has
been laid down. Under the policy, all Directors, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall retire
at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual
general meeting) and Directors so appointed are eligible for re-election. The

appointment term of the Directors is determined by the Board.

Before making recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of a Director, the nomination committee shall, after having
considered the present and future needs of the Company and the new
challenges/risks it may encounter, determine the necessary attributes/
competencies required for the Director. In considering the suitability of
an individual to become a Director or a Director to be re-appointed, the
nomination committee shall consider whether the person concerned
possesses the specific qualities required by the Company, his/her
personal profile and whether he/she meets the basic criteria as required
under applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, such as being able
to demonstrate a standard of competence and having the character,
experience and integrity commensurate with his/her position as a Director.
For the appointment/re-appointment of an INED, the nomination committee
shall also take into account the independence guidelines laid down in the

Listing Rules.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Nomination committee (Continued)

To ensure there is a balanced composition of the Board, the nomination
committee needs to consider not only one’s attributes/competencies, but
also his/her value to the Company. Board diversity is a key consideration
in Board selection process which the nomination committee shall give
consideration to. For the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also
focuses on age and professional experience. Selection of female candidates
or candidates of a particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is,
in part, dependent on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills,
knowledge and experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and
contribution likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes
that, with the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to
the needs and expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and

tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

As regards nomination procedures, the relevant details are set out
in the nomination policy, which requires the Board (i) on receipt of
recommendations from the nomination committee forms an opinion as to
whether one shall be appointed/re-appointed with particular regards paid
to the matters stipulated in Code Provision A.5.5 of the CG Code and
(i) publishes an announcement as per the Listing Rules after the same
has been approved. If the appointment/re-appointment is subject to
shareholders’ approval, disclosure as required under the Listing Rules has to
be made accordingly. The attendance record of each nomination committee

member is set out in the table on page 12.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Audit committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEX.

The audit committee currently comprises three INEDs. The members are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Wong Yiu Tak and Mr Tse

Pang Yuen.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the audit committee
met four times and made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditor; considered and approved the terms
of engagement of the external auditor for provision of profits tax services;
fixed the external auditor’s remuneration; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board
for approval; discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and determined the scope and extent of the interim review
before commencement; met the external auditor without the presence of
executive board members of the Company; and considered and made
recommendations to the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties, the audit policy, the terms of reference of the

committee and the risk management policy.
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Board Committees (Continueq)

Audit committee (Continued)

The audit committee during the year under review also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by monitoring the risk change during the year, assessing the adequacy of
the mitigating strategies used and the impact of the identified risks on the
Group. It also evaluated the need of setting up an internal audit function by
considering the current internal control mechanism and the pros and cons of
doing so. The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out

in the table on page 12.

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March
2019, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate governance.
At the meetings, the Board reviewed the general code of conduct for
employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and reviewed corporate
governance policies and practices including those relating to compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. Individual
attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set out in the

table on page 12.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,286,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$459,000 to the Group, which included HK$94,000 and
HK$365,000 being charges for tax services and review of the interim results

of the Group respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Responsibility
The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.

To this end, the Board, assisted by the audit committee, oversees the
foregoing systems on an ongoing basis by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social
and governance-related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management

and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Although the said systems are complemented by relevant procedure and
measures for the purpose of safeguarding the interests of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole, they are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process

As risk management is the responsibility of everyone within the Group
and something more than a formality, it is integrated into the day-to-day
operation and carried out at all levels under the stewardship of the Board.
In order to create a control environment across the Group to support the
risk management and internal control systems, the Company is committed
to building up a corporate culture based on business ethics, control
responsibility and risk awareness. To accomplish this, the Company has
adopted a general code of conduct to govern the integrity and ethical
behaviour of employees in business practices. Procedure manuals
delineating reporting lines and areas of responsibility of each department/
operating unit are laid down and are under review from time to time. In
addition, arrangements for employees to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in any matters in relation to the Group or any
non-compliance with the Company’s policies are in place. All policies,
procedure and guidelines with defined limits of delegated authority are put in

writing so as to enhance effective segregation of duties and controls.

On top of fostering a risk management culture, the Board adopts a bottom-
up approach to identify the Group’s operational risks. Instead of setting
up a separate department charged with the risk-related issues, it gets
all departments/operating units involved. Under the current systems, all
department/unit heads are required to establish risk factors specific to their
responsible areas, determine impact as well as likelihood of identified risks
in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board and develop mitigating
strategies. They shall maintain a risk register containing the said information
and update it on a regular basis. In order to provide the Board and the audit
committee with an overview of the Group’s operational risks and how they
are managed, the management scrutinises, filters, amends and compiles
relevant information, together with findings of the strategic risk identification
performed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board, as a composite
risk report to the Board/the audit committee for review and endorsement
every 6 months unless the circumstances are exceptional which require
immediate attention for discussion. The external auditor also has access to
the risk registers and composite risk report. During the financial year ended
31 March 2019, such risk assessment exercise was done on a half-yearly

basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process (Continued)

In the absence of an internal audit function (reasons for its absence are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 5 to 9),
the Board has appointed a qualified accountant, who is also the accounting
manager of the Group, to carry out sample testing on procedure compliance
and risk-related issues in respect of all departments/operating units. Test
results and findings are reported to the audit committee on an annual basis.
Heads of the departments/operating units which may have a significant
financial implication on the Group’s revenue are required to make an annual
representation to the audit committee confirming that all potential risks in
relation to their scope of work are properly dealt with. The management will
then review the situation and provide the Board/the audit committee with an
annual confirmation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Being part of the internal control process, the Group has maintained a
comprehensive accounting system for ensuring complete and accurate
financial information. Annual budgets as regards rental income and operating
expenses of ISQUARE, the Group’s main source of revenue, are prepared
for effective allocation and utilisation of resources. As regards outgoings,
the Group has established procedure for approval and control of operating
expenditures whilst the capital ones are subject to management approval
prior to commitment. Other control measures, including provision of monthly
management accounts to Directors and preparation of variance analyses,

help identify deficiencies and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Handling of inside information

Concerning inside information, the Company has implemented various
policies to govern how it shall be handled. Policy on disclosure of inside
information sets out the manner in which inside information is escalated
and disseminated whereas the risk management policy provides ways to
deal with risks which may constitute inside information. Besides, the general
code of conduct adopted by the Group prohibits inappropriate use of
confidential or inside information. All employees are required to undertake
their adherence to the said code and report any non-compliance with it to

the management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Handling of inside information (Continued)

For the purpose of complying with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to inside information, the Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code. Relevant procedure for guarding against mishandling of inside
information include pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
by designated Directors and notification of black-out period to Directors. In
order to remind Directors and employees of their obligations in securities

transaction, they are provided with memoranda on a quarterly basis.

Review of effectiveness

Although the management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems,
the Board and the audit committee oversee the process. In March 2019,
the Board, with the confirmation from the management certifying that the
aforesaid systems were functioning effectively and the assistance of the
audit committee, conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the financial year ended
31 March 2019. Such review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the review result, the Board
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal control and
financial reporting functions were adequate and that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and apposite to the Group
though no in-house or outsourced internal audit function has been set up as
required by the CG Code. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of
concern which should be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the

Company.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As with any business, the Group faces risks and uncertainties on a daily
basis. In determining the principal risks posed to the Group, the Board takes
into account the overall severity level (based on the impact and likelihood
matrix) of the risks set out in the composite risk report and their changes
during the financial year. It also examines their nature and impact on the
Group and evaluates the effectiveness and suitability of the mitigating
strategies as applied by taking into consideration the actual operation and

performance of the Group.

Annual Report 2018-2019 £3)

25



T¥ERRE Corporate Governance Report

RBREERAEREE @

TERBRTABEE @

MR BB AW IR SRR FHEY - AT RA
EEMEFAENEBAR AT - BWF2HR
SENAER - ARFAREENTEREX - 8
RS EEZARNEMER - HAEBAR
RVEFOERERE  HRERYALENE

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

According to the prioritisation of risks from the Group’s overall perspective,
the following are identified as principal risks currently encountered by the
Group. That said, they are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive. There
may be other risks which may not be material now but could turn out to be

such in the future. Although the principal risks may not change significantly

THOIA - BREEEE - from year to year, their magnitude and importance to the Group can and do
vary.
T EREH
il FEERRNEL i TEERRERERHE
Risk change
during the year
Risk pertainingto  under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Investment properties ¢
(Ps)

Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the
Group's IPs are stated at fair values in the consolidated
statement of financial position whilst changes thereof are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Given the relatively heavy weighting of the IPs in the
Group’s property portfolio, any significant change in the
valuation of the IPs can seriously affect the Group’s profit/
loss for the year. Although one of the key drivers of the
valuation of the IPs is rental income which can be volatile
and there has been continual downward pressure on rental
level, no apparent change to risk exposure is expected as
there was no incident giving rise to a substantial change in
valuation during the year under review.

That said, due to the current financial reporting
requirements, valuation changes have influenced and will
continue to influence the Group’s profit/loss though the
Group's cash flow will not be affected.

Tian Teck Land Limited k&t EHR A 7

Enabling revenue growth is an effective means to counter
adverse impact caused by valuation losses. Measures
taken by the Group include the following:

o To preserve quality of the IPs by carrying out
maintenance and enhancement works

e Toimprove tenant mix

o To stay alert to the market/tenant needs for
maintaining competitiveness

e Tolaunch creative and popular promotions so as to
increase exposure and add value to the IPs
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
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Risk pertainingto  under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Leasing [ Despite the fact that there was an increasing number of o To keep abreast of the market condition so as to set

tourists especially mainlanders coming to Hong Kong
subsequent to the opening of Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge and Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express
Rail Link, it did not bring about incremental spending as
expected. Together with a relatively stronger Hong Kong
dollar and a moderating economic growth, no obvious
improvement in retail market was noticed. Downward
pressure on rental level and increase in vacancies at
iISQUARE persisted during the year under review given
the anticipated increase in new supply of retail premises in
Tsim Sha Tsui area and the change in consumer behaviour,
such as online shopping. In view of the prevailing retail
conditions, the risk of tenants’ default may continue.

Though there was quite a large number of tenancies at
iISQUARE due for renewal or rent review during the year in
question amid the foregoing leasing/retail conditions, the
mitigating strategies adopted by the Group can, to a certain
extent, help alleviate the unfavourable impact brought
by the aforesaid situation. Risk level therefore remained
broadly the same in the year under review.

the rental at a reasonable but competitive rate
To take ongoing initiatives to invite targeted tenants to
iSQUARE and appoint competent real estate agents

to market vacant spaces

To adopt a more cautious approach on tenant
selection

To maintain a well-balanced tenant mix and manage
tenancy expiries and vacancies

To increase tenancy deposit and closely monitor
tenants’ payment record

To conduct direct engagement with tenants and
monitor their financial performance
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
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Risk change
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Risk pertainingto ~ under review Description Key controls and mitigations
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Manpower & Insufficient supply of experienced and skilled personnel, in o To review the competitiveness of salary and benefits
particular front-line staff, has long been an issue in service of staff
industry. Together with the structural changes in the
workforce in Hong Kong, such situation continued during e To provide staff with relevant outside training
the year under review.

o Toset up areliever pool for front-line and marketing
staff so as to provide a temporary relief of shortage of
manpower

e Tostrengthen communication with staff through daily
briefing
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Economic and political &
outlook
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As the Group’s operation is mainly based in Hong Kong,
any adverse change in political and economic climate in
Hong Kong could disrupt its overall business. Unfavourable
global environment can also impact on travelling and
spending patterns of tourists/shoppers which in turn
affects the financial performance of the Group. There
was no apparent improvement in local/global political and
economic conditions during the year under review.

BERIR AR

NRROEERE REERAEKTEFRROITE
i

To closely monitor the operating environment so as
to enable prompt adjustment to corporate strategies
and business activities

To maintain a solid financial position with strong cash
flow and a low gearing level

S
® RBRKTAEE

BB ARRRREREBHRAZEAEER
RHSZ EERMBMAERNZEIN
EHAEERBREATEZ

EHBR B TEA A
BERR -

Note:

o Risk level remains broadly the same

EEETE

In addition to monitoring the impact of the principal risks that the Group is
now facing by adjusting its corporate strategies and mitigating measures,

the management will keep observing if there is any emerging risk which may

affect the Group significantly on a regular basis.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://ttll.etnet.com.hk/eng/ca_calendar.php) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2019, there were no changes made to the

Articles of Association of the Company.

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (ttlicosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

° If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM

o Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they represent at least:

(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the

request relates; or

(b) 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at

the AGM to which the request relates.

° The request must:

(@) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
(b) identify the proposed resolution;
() be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

notice of the AGM is despatched.

o The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the
Directors to call a GM.

The request:

() must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them may themselves call a GM, and the meeting
so convened must be called for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the requirement
to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the GM by reason of the
failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to
the date of such GM (“Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(@) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(a) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(o) identify the statement to be circulated;

(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

() if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(b) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Dividend policy

With the aim of providing Shareholders with a sustainable dividend stream,
the Company adopted a dividend policy in November 2018. This policy
provides guidelines to the Board in determining dividends. It clearly sets out
considerations the Board shall take into account when proposing dividends.
These factors include, inter alia, financial performance, working capital
requirements and future development plans of the Company and general
economic environment. Subject to all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board may declare dividends
provided that there is a profit (excluding valuation changes) for the year/
period concerned. To give flexibility to the Board in making payout decisions
after having regard to the circumstances then pertaining, the dividend policy
does not specify any payout ratio, the form dividends shall take or frequency
it shall be declared. This policy will be subject to review by the Board from

time to time and be updated as and when considered necessary.
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Approach and Strategy

Being a responsible enterprise, the Company is not only concerned with
its financial growth but also its non-financial performance. The Company
recognises that the manner in which it conducts business will impact on
the environment and society. As such, the management strives to make a
positive contribution to the sustainability development of the environment
and society by integrating the socially responsible practices in its daily
operation. The Executive Directors are responsible for driving environmental
and social responsibilities initiatives and reviewing their practices for
performance improvement whilst the Board assumes an overall responsibility

for the Company’s environmental and social strategy and reporting.

Reporting Scope

This Corporate Social Responsibility Report provides a review on the Group’s
performance of its environmental and social responsibilities for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019. As iISQUARE is the Group’s main business

operation, its performance is included herein unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Its content is determined through a process which involves
identification of stakeholders and relevant issues in relation to environmental
and social responsibilities and prioritisation of the issues to be reported
after taking into account the stakeholders’ expectations and the Group’s
unique business nature. In this report, only the environmental and social
responsibilities initiatives and performance that are material and/or relevant
to the Group and its stakeholders are outlined. During the financial year
ended 31 March 2019, the Company complied with all the “comply or

explain” provisions, where applicable, set out in the Guide.
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Stakeholders’ Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To truly understand the views and expectations of the stakeholders on
sustainability development, the Company keeps ongoing communication
with its key stakeholders. During the year under review, the Company
engaged its shareholders, employees, business partners and tenants
through face-to-face discussions and/or questionnaires. Reporting issues
are identified according to the impact of the issues on the Group’s business
and stakeholders as evaluated by the management and the stakeholders

respectively.

Environmental Issues

Policy

Since the management acknowledges that the Group shall take into account
the impact of its business operation on the environment while achieving
financial growth, the Group has adopted an environmental policy with a

focus on the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements

2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection where practicable

3. promoting environmental awareness among staff

4, adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation

5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way

6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials

7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and
encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process
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Environmental Issues (Continued)

Initiatives

In order to support environmental conservation, the Group, in addition to its
practice in collecting used/useless lai see packets for recycling, participated
in the lai see packets reuse programme organised by Greeners Action during
the year under review by sponsoring it for the event and providing iISQUARE
as one of the collection points. The Group also took part in “Earth Hour
2019” organised by World Wide Fund for Nature (“WWF”) so as to raise

environmental awareness in the workplace.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance:

o using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps
° purchasing white paper with FSC certification only

o disposing of used paper which is good for recycling through a paper

recycling company

o employing multi-zone lighting controls
o returning used toners/cartridges to suppliers for recycling
° using environmentally friendly paper for printing corporate

communication to shareholders

o switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not

in use

To adhere to the principle of reusing and recycling materials as laid down in

the environmental policy, the Group would donate all the computers which

have been scheduled to be replaced in the coming financial year to charities.
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Initiatives (Continued)

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, iISQUARE, being the Group’s main business operation, also
takes proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, it
participated in “Earth Hour 2019” as organised by WWF and provided venue
at a substantially discounted rate to WWF for promoting environmental

awareness through activities such as sea glass jewelry workshop.

In addition to the aforesaid, iISQUARE keeps employing those green

measures it has been using, such as:

o use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
° diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
o reviewing and, where possible, shortening daily operating hours of

lights and air-conditioning at common areas accessible by shoppers

o encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally
friendly practices and providing them with hints thereon through
iISQUARE publications

o recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate
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Environmental Issues (Continued)

Initiatives (Continued)

With the implementation of various energy saving initiatives during the year
under review, the amount of electricity purchased from power company
and the indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated therefrom
reduced by approximately 8.25% and 26.89% respectively (details of which
are shown in the table below) when compared with the baseline figures of

the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the first year energy numbers were

collected.

BEs JKEL /N 12,427.01 12,332.26 13,544.42
Amount of purchased electricity MWh
RAEEMBENE N MEENERLAERESENE N =& E = 6,337.78 6,289.45 8,668.43

Indirect GHG emissions from purchased electricity

tonnes of CO, equivalent

RE-—FRIREE  BRESSEESHAE
MUEBERET ZHEEEALBEIED HRPRLED

To further reduce electricity consumption, ISQUARE will continue its energy
saving programme on lighting system through the identification of locations

where more energy efficient lights could be installed.
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RIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)

xiE Performance

EE?FA$EI£T¢$%¥&§&&>§TW A% Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
EBSBFEBURE AR - ﬁﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁ’jﬁﬁz,ﬁ; investment holding, and iSQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the

ﬁﬁf%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂli*ﬁ”ﬁd‘ RARFEE - HREEMEL total amount of direct GHG emissions generated by them is relatively small.

RS T2 EAEE (R EERES) The largest contributor to the carbon footprint of the Group (including

ETHEERIR - iISQUARE) in the year under review was the indirect GHG emissions from

electricity consumption.

1. BRERBHR(Z&ELREE) 1. GHG emissions' (CO, equivalent)

BEXR (1)

Direct sources (Scope 1)’

o Lh® NI 0.72 0.73
Diesel? tonnes

ETERR (#E/E2)"

Indirect sources (Scope 2)'
o TSP N 6,370.51 6,323.50

Electricity® tonnes

H A K (#EE3)"

Other indlirect sources (Scope 3)'

o RIER/KMEMARIEN NI 25.17 20.51
Electricity used for processing fresh water* tonnes

o EIR)S/KMEARIEN® N 13.52 10.33
Electricity used for processing sewage® tonnes

o FEENHERAEEHS NI 1.39 0.41
Paper waste disposed at landfills® tonnes

BEREAEINE (BET - 2K%3) N 6,411.31 6,355.48

Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1, 2 and 3) tonnes

HEREREIEK

GHG emissions avoided

o ARIREIKC ARE (202.85) (200.59)
Recycling of paper” tonnes
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RIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)
E 10 Performance (Continued)
2. HEIBEHIE 2. Energy consumption

EEEREFEFE
Direct energy consumption
o ZOm® JKEL/ N 3.02 3.09
Diesel® MWh
EIEEEIREFE
Indlirect energy consumption
o« TN JKEL/INEF 12,491.20 12,399.02
Electricity® MWh
BEREREES JCE /N 12,494.22 12,402.11
Total energy consumption MWh
BYFREHEEERERASE JEENEE, TR 0.24 0.23
Total energy consumption per m? of floor area MWh/m?
3. HERBEFETC 3. Paper consumption'™

o WMAEAW NI 537.17 499.43
Office paper kg

o HEARRAMALK NI 1,343.84 1,334.14
Paper for printing corporate communication kg

MRS N 1,881.01 1,833.57

Total paper consumption kg
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RIEEE @) Environmental Issues (continued)
KB @) Performance (Continued)
4. FKEM 4, Water consumption'

BRKE SR 62,309.00 50,968.00
Total water consumption mé
BYREmEEZ AKkEE SRR TR 1.17 0.96
Total water consumption per m? of floor area m®/m?
AR AEBEREEVNBEERES - MBIRE As the Group is situated at ISQUARE where water is provided by the
Y2 HOKTIRBKEE - HAEE(BER Water Supplies Department, the Group (including iISQUARE) has not
BES) £ BEEFELT RS LR ED encountered any problem in sourcing water for daily operation.

R -

5  EMERE 5. Waste management
FERHYEIR R A EEY
Non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills'
ZENHERNEZERYES N 1,975.95 1,799.98
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills tonnes
BYIAREEBZENEERNESEEDES RME TR 0.04 0.03
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills per m? of floor area tonnes/m?
JER B
Waste collected for recycling
o IR NI 42,260.00 41,790.00
Paper'™ kg
o ZAREM NI 231.00 246.00
Plastics™ kg
o TE" NI 179.00 177.00
Metals™ kg
o R BE 1% 17 15
Toners/cartridges'® pieces

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR AT
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Environmental Issues (Continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note &:

Note 6:

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions
and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department and the Environmental Protection Department (“Hong
Kong GHG Guidelines”). All numbers in this table, where applicable, are
rounded to two decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned
and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation
of electricity which the Group (including iISQUARE but excluding tenants
which purchased power through their own metered supply) purchased from
power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that (i) come from paper waste
disposed by the Group at landfills and (i) are relevant to the activities of
the Group and iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for
processing fresh water and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’
own metered supply, by government departments.

The breakdown of the Scope 1 GHG emissions in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows: carbon dioxide (0.72 tonnes of CO,
equivalent), methane (0.0001 tonnes of CO, equivalent) and nitrous oxide
(0.0006 tonnes of CO, equivalent).

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of iISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potentials set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group (including ISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity
bills and the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity
provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including ISQUARE) as shown in water bills and the latest available
unit electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including ISQUARE) as shown in water bills and the latest available
unit electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the
Drainage Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of office paper consumed
by the Group (excluding paper generated by the management company
engaged to run iISQUARE (“MgtCo”) for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE)
net of office paper collected for recycling and the relevant emission factor set
out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Performance (Continued)

Note 7:  Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE) and
the relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 8:  Energy consumption is calculated based on the amount of diesel consumed
by the emergency generator at ISQUARE and the relevant conversion factor
set out in the “List of common conversion factors (Engineering conversion
factors)” as published by IOR Energy Pty Ltd.

Note 9:  Energy consumption is the amount of electricity purchased by the Group
(including iISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity bills.

Note 10: Referring to paper generated by the Group only (excluding paper generated
by the MgtCo for any purpose in relation to ISQUARE).

Note 11: Being the amount of water used by the Group (including iISQUARE) as shown
in water bills.

Note 12: Being the estimated amount of general waste disposed through iISQUARE,
including those generated by the Group. Such amount is derived based on
the average daily amount of general waste as collected and weighed by
the cleaning contractor of ISQUARE at different time slots multiplied by the
number of days in a year.

Note 13: Including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by external
parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.

Note 14: Being plastics disposed through iISQUARE.
Note 15: Being metals disposed through iSQUARE.

Note 16: Being toners/cartridges used by the Group.

Due to their business nature, the Group (including iISQUARE) does not
generate a material amount of hazardous waste and disclosure of total

packaging material used for finished products is not applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the operating activities of the Group (including
iISQUARE) have no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations relating to the

environment that had a significant impact on it.
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Social Issues

Since the management of iISQUARE has been outsourced to the MgtCo
and there is no need for the Group to directly deal with employment-related
matters in respect of ISQUARE, discussion on areas relating to social issues
only covers the Group and does not include staff of the MgtCo employed for

general building and property management of iSQUARE.

Employment

As the Group’s success depends largely on the support of its employeeste,
the management places great emphasis on maintaining a quality workplace.
Building up a culture which advocates ethical and responsible business
practices has become essential. To this end, the Group has adopted a
general code of conduct (“Code”) which applies to both Directors and
employees and deals with areas of data privacy, copyright protection,
prevention of bribery, “whistle-blowing” and equal opportunities. According
to the Code, employees are required to observe the requirements of the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance, the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance and the Race Discrimination Ordinance and
their respective codes of practice. In addition, the Group has laid down an
employment policy, setting out its principles on recruitment and promotion,
such as equal opportunities and “selection on capability” basis. Procedures
and factors to be considered on review of the remuneration packages of the
senior management are delineated in the remuneration policy. Information in
respect of the Group’s remuneration review mechanism is mentioned in the
Corporate Governance Report headed “Remuneration committee” as set out
on pages 15 to 17. To be consistent with the principles of the employment
policy on motivating employees and providing equal opportunities,
performance appraisal is conducted annually. It is the basis for salary

adjustment, discretionary bonus and promotion.

Although policies on compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest
periods, and some other benefits and welfare are not put in writing, relevant
steps to govern their application and due observance have been developed
and implemented under the management of the Executive Directors of the
Company.

Note: Staff/employees exclude Directors of the Company and staff employed by the
MgtCo for general building and property management of iISQUARE throughout
this Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
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Social Issues (Continued)

Development and training

In order to create a supportive workplace which enables the employees to
develop their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately,
the Group provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees,
irrespective of their rankings. Given the complexity of job duties, senior
management is provided with additional funding for outside training. Other
than financial support, the Group also organises group-wide training for its

staff from time to time.

Key topics covered by the training undertaken by the employees during the

year under review included:

o compliance and regulatory updates
o health and safety issues
o prevention of bribery

Employee engagement

Since a good work-life balance is considered significant to the employees,
the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within office hours
and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of the Group.
During the year under review, the Company invited not only its staff but also
their family members to participate in “TWGHs Halloween Charity Run”,

which enabled them to do exercise and cultivate relationship simultaneously.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared by the management so as to identify ways to make further

improvement.
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee engagement (Continued)

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. Around 77% (2018: 77%) of the respondents found either
satisfied or very satisfied with the Group as a whole whilst about 71%
(2018: 68%) was happy with the workforce-management relationship. As at
31 March 2019, more than half of the employees have been working with
the Group over a decade. The employee turnover rate for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 was about 3.08% (2018: 12.12%) while the employee
absence rate was around 1.72% (2018: 1.31%).

Health and safety

Since the Group’s main business is property investment and investment
holding, health and safety risks posed to its employees as a result of
occupational activities are relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group is
dedicated to provide a healthy and safe work environment to its staff and

therefore has established a policy in this regard with an emphasis on:
o compliance with all applicable statutory requirements

o ensuring a continuous improvement of the health and safety level
at workplace by reviewing the operating practices and seeking

comments from employees from time to time

o adopting measures which can reduce, control and if possible,

eliminate hazards at workplace

o conveying the Group’s concerns over health and safety to the MgtCo
and requesting it to get its front-line staff and contractors familiarised

with the proper procedures required in that regard

During the year under review, the Group carried out an assessment on risks
associated with manual handling operations by referencing to the “Guidance
Notes on Manual Handling Operations” jointly published by the Occupational
Safety and Health Council and the Labour Department with the aim to
improve the safety level of the work environment. To raise occupational
health awareness among staff, the Group also organised a talk delivered
by the Labour Department as regards relation between work pressure and

common gastrointestinal diseases.
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Social Issues (Continued)

Labour standards

While the Group does not have its own specific policy regarding child labour
or forced labour, it is a statutory requirement in Hong Kong, a place where

the Group operates, not to engage child and forced labour.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on it relating to employment, health and safety, and labour standards

as mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide.

Supply chain management

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
MgtCo, professional service providers and some other companies that
deliver services for support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation
on areas such as insurance, banking and information technology. Services
of the indirect suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering,
cleaning and security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo. Based
on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the Group’s key
suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the latter one is
particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with the indirect

suppliers.

Since suppliers are the “extension” of the Group, their behaviour shall reflect
the Group’s values. Although the Group does not maintain a separate
policy on managing environmental and social risks of its suppliers, it has
embedded the relevant concerns in its environmental policy and health and
safety policy. As the MgtCo is the key supplier which poses a significant
impact on the Group, it is provided with relevant policies of the Group in the
hope that it can convey the Group’s concerns to the indirect suppliers. The
MgtCo is also requested to integrate the Group’s values into its operation
process where practicable and economically viable. Apart from written
communication, the Group has frequent direct dialogue and regular meetings
with the MgtCo. According to the said policies, the Group also reviews
its practices from time to time so as to reduce health and safety risks at
workplace and incorporates environmental considerations into contracting

decisions where practicable.
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Social Issues (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Although more than 60% of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that around 80% (2018: 100%) of the respondents found partnering with the

Group was not merely mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Product/service responsibility

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team pays
visits to the shops when required so as to exchange views with the tenants
directly and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can also
contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone and
email as and when needed. As a means to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction, if
any, is properly addressed to in a timely manner, a formal complaint-handling

mechanism is in place as well.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year under review conducted a satisfaction
survey on about half of its tenants. From the survey result and through the
interaction with the tenants, it was noted that there were some areas such as
technical/maintenance services and marketing the Group had to further work

on.

Other than customer satisfaction, the Group also recognises the importance
of personal data protection. Relevant concerns have been incorporated into
the Code and are communicated to the employees. According to the Code,
employees are required to safeguard the privacy and security of personal
information of the Group’s stakeholders by observing the data protection
principles of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Collected information is
accessible on a “need-to-know” basis. In view of the close relationship with
the MgtCo, the Group has also made known to it of the Group’s concerns in

this regard.
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Social Issues (Continued)

Product/service responsibility (Continued)

Providing a safe environment to the tenants is also a great concem to the
Group. Although property management of iISQUARE is the job of the MgtCo,
the Group still closely monitors it by receiving updates from the MgtCo via
regular project meetings and daily report. On top of it, the project team also
patrols iISQUARE on a daily basis so as to ensure it is managed in an orderly
fashion. As for ad hoc issues, the MgtCo is required to report to the Group

promptly.

Anti-corruption

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a policy detailing situations in which acceptance of
advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention of bribery and
channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the Code. Employees
are required to undertake their adherence thereto. Besides, internal control
activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported
issues, the management will conduct investigation and handle them in the

manner set out in the Code.

To help staff stay alert to the pitfall of bribery and enhance their integrity, a
training video produced by Hong Kong Business Ethics Development Centre

was televised to all its staff during the year under review.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it relating to product responsibility and anti-corruption as

mentioned in aspects B6 and B7 of the Guide.



TEHEEFHRE Corporate Social Responsibility Report

:I: = nﬁ% ()

HE
AEEROHEAERESTERESNAE BT
FHRBE  SHBERINHBHRO—RRA - &=
HEBMEIR c RAFER - AEE BB
FTEALRRE  MRETH  RE=LEROBTH
REED - BERNETY  FAEEREPET
DEARE=FTRRN RE=(BEHRELE
mEWR-

AEBMRGERASH TERERES APLER
EYEREARNERHY Ziﬁ A S ERR AL 2B
AR - TREESI R RARBEMFINER - RE
E-F-NF=ZA=1+—HULMERFE  A&H
LU E BB REES T IA TREHE
o  EREMEES

s EERE

o EEBMHEEHRE

o BEREYE

s WREAEESS

s FATEEEUSFE

BT SCRHER B S iR 8 ?ﬂi?bﬁiﬁibﬁl\  REH
TERFRBEERBIUERZERE — RRENFAE

BB 5 R E 1B KA DAE@EE%’I%$M@IEE’J
(FE

Social Issues (continued)

Community

In recognition of its role in advancement of the community, the Group has
established a community policy. General principles on donation, focus areas,
and the form in which the support is delivered are clearly set out therein.
During the year under review, the Group made donations to The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, Greeners Action, Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and
Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation. To put words into actions, the Group
also mobilised its staff to take part in “TWGHs Halloween Charity Run” as

organised by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

The Group believes that going beyond corporate philanthropy by providing
venues to organisations for hosting charitable events is the best way to help
the needy as it can inspire others to follow and draw the public attention to
the needs of the underprivileged. During the financial year ended 31 March
2019, the Group offered venues at a substantially discounted rate to the

following charities:

° Autism Partnership Foundation

° Médecins Sans Frontiéres

° MF Music & Art Promotional Association
o Plan International

o WWF

° Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong

Other than giving support to individual charities for hosting specific events,
the Group also showed its continuous care to the local community by
granting Po Leung Kuk, an iconic charity in Hong Kong, a licence for placing

a donation box at ISQUARE throughout the year in question.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) has pleasure in
submitting the annual report together with the audited financial statements of

the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 83 to 154.



EgE2#4% Directors’ Report

BREERRRBAFERE
RKRABERZE—NF—A+—HIE#FH
FEgREEI2T(ZZE—NFE : 3
%%Q%ﬁ)° EXESHERKEBE_S—NF
ZA=T—HLFEMNRBREFRAEK0.22T
(ZZ2—N\F : GRREB0.237T) °

05 EF D R AR HANR SR B BN BT R
RAFASHRB 7£ AR ZZE—NF A
+ARBEHR—RBEZT-NAFHLA+N\BEH=
IHEERRXE %EWFF{:;J#E%EXE\ME%*
AEERERERRBRE ZKE - ERIRME
Z BRI R 1S aﬁm&)ﬁ FiEBRPEXtHERAB
BEREKEE S —NFALAT=BEHATT
U= (E,%BTHWZHU FEARRRREE
R — BEEFERKERISHRAMFLI17E
1712-1716 EBBR REHES EEFE«‘ET o BB
EE 2 RAREBEBER =T —AFNLA+H
E%:%ﬁ%%%%iﬁ@@@é’%t
—E-NFTATHEHNENTFRZZ—NEF
NATN\BERA=2IRKELMMZKE -

RETEERLESRITZRREAFAE  WiEE
L&Tmm% CARAER ZE—NAFNAZE
EH—BE_T-NFNATHER-IH(EEM
a%&@%ﬂ%%ﬂ%&a&aﬁ“ ] B 15
E%%HHF‘&JW@F%&@@JE c FTABP X &R
BRREFRAE_T—NFNLAZBEH—TT
e =~+5 (%.&%BTF'EJWZHU FEANAREE
R — BEEFE FKL%SM‘A%DEP/UW@
1712-17T16EBEBHR RESFELERA

Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.22 per share (2018: HK$0.23 per share) was
paid on 11 January 2019. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.22 per share (2018: HK$0.23 per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2019.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to
the said final dividend from Monday, 16 September 2019 to Wednesday,
18 September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 13 September 2019.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on Thursday, 10 October 2019 to
members whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday,
18 September 2019, following approval at the annual general meeting to be

held on Tuesday, 10 September 2019.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 3 September 2019
to Tuesday, 10 September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 2 September 2019.
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Business Review and Commentary

Business model and strategies

The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China. The Group generates and preserves its value through

being an investor in those property markets.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$504.4 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2019, representing a decrease of approximately 4.5% compared
with the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in

rental income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.

Net valuation losses on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$270.5 million, compared with the net
valuation losses of HK$252.0 million for the previous financial year. The
valuation losses will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash

flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$73.7 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders

of HK$108.1 million for the previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (Continued)

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted to
approximately HK$606.8 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 3.5% compared with the previous
financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2019 was approximately
92.9% (2018: 98.3%).

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2019 was HK$14,006.3 million,
compared with HK$14,282.6 million at 31 March 2018.

On 7 October 2013, Associated International Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a
50.01% owned subsidiary, entered into a facility agreement with a bank
comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and a 3-year
revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating interest rate. On
30 August 2016, AIHL entered into a supplemental agreement with the bank
for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019. In comply
with certain conditions, the facilities have been further extended for two
additional years to 8 October 2021. At 31 March 2019, the banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2018: HK$200 million) and the
Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans divided by total equity)

was 1.4% (2018: 1.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2019, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was 37 (2018:
38) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately

HK$27.5 million (2018: HK$26.4 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
. Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

o Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 97.4% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: 97.4%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

o Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
iISQUARE at 31 March 2019 was 14.2% (2018: 13.4%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)
(b)  Occupancy rate
o Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

o Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

° Quantified KPI data:

HE=E

Occupancy rate
R2019F 20184
3A31H 3H31H
At 31 March At 31 March
REME Investment properties 2019 2018
B &5 iISQUARE 92.9% 98.3%
UREBNEMEEYE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
RNEIETE RS ES ES Commercial properties in the PRC 50.1% 44.4%
NREBH T EYME Industrial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%

RIFER - RERMEBEANES ; ER
=HEEENEERR
REB(REEFDM RS 2 Bk MEH EREAE
EIRBHGR R KRB - ETEIREAABAERE KR
B - AREEFZSHBAE 2 EZBENTHR - 5
BN AFREITEEEBENLEASE T RS
N MzEdmENEFeREN D

Environmental policies, performance and related

compliance; key relationships with stakeholders

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with environmental-related laws and regulations as well as
key relationships with its stakeholders as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report on pages 37 to 53 of the annual report, and such

discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control — Principal risks and uncertainties” as set out on pages 25
to 28 of the annual report, and such discussion forms part of this Directors’

Report.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

With the uncertain external economic environment together with the
anticipated increase in new supply of retail premises in the Tsim Sha Tsui
area, management would expect the leasing market to be challenging.
Management will continue to adopt appropriate leasing strategies to
minimise the likely impact on rental income from iISQUARE. It is anticipated
that rental income from iISQUARE and the results from operations of the

Group for the coming financial year will be affected.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Sin Cho Chiu, Charles (vacated from office with effect from 26 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Wong Yiu Tak

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Miss Cheong Chong Ling and Mr Tse
Pang Yuen shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of all
the Company’s subsidiaries (except Associated International Hotels Limited
(“AIHL”) whose directors also included Miss Cheong Chong Ling, Mr Sin
Cho Chiu, Charles (vacated from office with effect from 26 June 2019),
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Wong Yiu Tak and Mr Lee Chung) were
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and

Mr Cheong Sim Lam.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, for an
initial period of two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments
continue after the said period unless and until either party gives to the other
three months’ notice in writing and their respective directorship shall also
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association of AIHL.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-

executive directors to be independent.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2019, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”):

(@ AT (@) The Company
[igvig 2 ¢E|
Number of shares

HERITH

BRER

ERER ROZLEN

B AR REER ATFER e Aot

Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting

a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares

BRI Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 590,000 — 4,625,792 0.97%

$BEIFHN Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%

B Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%

fEpedEs] Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%

$EIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%

YEABRA(FE1)  Sin Cho Chiu, 2,000 - 115,200 117,200 0.02%

Charles (Note 1) (7£2)(Note 2)
i Notes:

(1) ANR DR EAGERMBEUE LA L E (1) In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr Sin

ZERRMN YR -ZE-AFAZ+RAE

@) AR TH115,2000 BB EBR AR (—
HEEEBTERERBUBRSHERELR
THIF AR FTiE A R9115,20008 8815 - IRIE
BHIEH - R EWARBIES LSRG M E

o

A
Yl

B

Cho Chiu, Charles was vacated from his office as a director with effect
from 26 June 2019.

2) The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(b) Associated International Hotels Limited

EZEREE
Number of ordinary shares

HERITH
BRERE
Ens ROBHE®N
BARERE REER AFER wme Aot
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
i Name interests interests interests interests shares
EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIRMN Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 7.11%
SEAMEE Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
fipode] Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
$EIRIS Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
JEXRBR(5F1)  Sin Cho Chiu, 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%

Charles (Note 1) (¥%2)(Note 2)

=3 Notes:

1) AARBIREMAHBERARNEBUEEERBLE (1) In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr Sin
ZERBAMA YR ZF-hEFEXAZ=+RAH Cho Chiu, Charles was vacated from his office as a director with effect
HBAERL from 26 June 2019.

2 NEIEZR T #120,0000% BREEAR AR (— 2 The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary

AR e A R AR BARER R E KR
FEHIE) X R)) BTHE A #9120,000/% % 3@ AL © 1R
BESED - AR ERE REA UL ERH B

0

T

)

o

e
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shares held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho
Chiu, Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(¢) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

ZBERHEE

Number of ordinary shares
IHE BT
EREE
BEEE ROBEW
BAER XEER DR B Batt
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
SEIRMN Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
SEAMEE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fodea] Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%

B BT ERAE SN - BAD AIRRRE D] 5352
R BTN ECMEBER  SIZRIEETAIE
A RAARRRREZAELENER  RZF
—NWE=ZA=+—08  ARAESF  &=THA
BREBEA(ZLEMRZER)DLEEER
AR E B AR (AR A 7 AR EXVEL AT 8
EE)RG - BERODEREE 2R IORE ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2019, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

IHE BTN

BEREERG

R EE BEMEIL
Number of Percentage of total

shares issued voting shares

REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%
SETRAR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%

(3%1)(Note 1)

BNy Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(£¥2)(Note 2)
ME & Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(3%1)(Note 1)
RE=E Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(3£2)(Note 2)
o Notes:

) EEMEEFMEBENRZEREELZTIEEN
46,139,164 J i 10 48 [ ° 7£46,139,164 8% i -
46,023,872R REEIRM ST HEFFE » 115,292fR Bl R HE
RENEBZTHIHE -

@ EBHEBLAEMPEMNESERERLIEED
27,864,420 L I 10 48] - 27,864,420 e 7
26,862,036/ AN T EFA + 1,002,384 A1l &
HEBREBERLIHE -

B TR BEEIN R E-AFZ A=+ —
$“ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%EME@I%\§%Mw
SE336 &M AT R 2 M AR R %7 FEE
[’ 2 B AR o

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR AT

(1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

2) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the

Company, its parent company or controlling shareholder or any of their

respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company

or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly

or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@

The director’'s emoluments of Mr Wong Yiu Tak for the year ended
31 March 2019 were HK$170,000 at the Company level and
HK$340,000 at the Group level. Given that Mr Wong was paid
proportionally to his term of directorship starting from 3 October 2017,
his director’s emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2018 were
HK$84,000 and HK$168,000 at the Company level and Group level

respectively.

Save as aforesaid, there are no changes in respect of the directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2019 when compared with
the last financial year at the Company level whilst the changes at the
Group level are due to allowances for expenses actually incurred
by the executive directors, reallocation of quarters among certain
directors and director’s salary adjustment at the subsidiary level. The

Group’s policy regarding directors’ emoluments has not changed.

Since the vacation of office of Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles as a
director of the Company and AIHL took effect on 26 June 2019, he
ceased to be a non-executive director, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee, and an altemate to Mr Cheong
Kheng Lim and Miss Cheong Chong Ling in acting as the
authorised representative of the respective companies on the same day.
Mr Sin’s emoluments as a director, namely director’s fee and payment
made pursuant to his contracts for serving on the audit committee
and remuneration committee, were paid on a pro rata basis by

the said companies up to 26 June 2019.
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Indemnity of Directors
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Management Contracts

(@) Agreements exist between the Company and AIHL, a 50.01% owned
subsidiary, whereby AIHL agrees to provide administrative services
(company secretarial) and non-administrative services (office facilities
and staff) to the Company for an indefinite period. The aggregate
fees paid to AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HK$1,200,000 (2018: HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between AIHL and Cushman &
Wakefield Property Management Limited whereby this management
company is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of iISQUARE. The
management agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months
commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed
on an annual basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination by
AIHL. Manager’s remuneration of HK$600,000 (2018: HK$600,000)
was paid by AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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Location

Fixed Assets

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

BERZ

Existing use

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

HEFH

Term of lease

Bl 35 (T BREA N BRI AE)
BEXRDIREBEE ST =5

(JLBEIBER 74255%)

iISQUARE (excluding an office on 9th Floor)

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

IHETERE
HTABRL - —HEAER
LT~ L2 ~ L3R LAFERL
NEBETDRE-AZTHR
(BUE MR 225% )

Good Luck Industrial Building

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,
and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,
105 How Ming Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

GFET AL

W~ —88 - =R RmiEg
NERDEZZABNAAZT/\HR
R NVBE B ERE 7805 )

Goodluck Industrial Centre

Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors,
808 Lai Chi Kok Road,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

By

Shopping centre

THRIFER

Workshops and car parking spaces

Y BRINE - BEREAUKRER

Petrol filing station,
showrooms, car parking
spaces and car

workshops

T

Medium

T

Medium

T

Medium
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Location

Fixed Assets (continued)
Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)

RERZR HEFH

Existing use Term of lease

BEZ S0

T
BETmBR =2 TR R
EEHEP_T—E_T=%
(55 1B 366557 )

Euro Trade Centre

5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and
Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No.366)

HRES
NE—Z+mMEAL
PRI EMN T SR
BRAFE=T=%
Yi An Plaza

Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,
No. 33 Jianshe Liu Road,
Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou, PRC

NES =

Offices Long

Offices Medium
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Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2019 are set out in notes 20 to 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$598,000 (2018: HK$2,830,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 155 to 156 of the annual report.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 72, has been the Chairman and a director of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and
1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a
member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 70, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been the
Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels Limited
since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is also
a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 66, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 60, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 39 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling (also known as Cheong Chong Ling
Diamond), aged 48, joined the Group as an assistant to directors in 1997.
She has been a director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Science from the School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 63, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman),
remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as
member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr
Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr Wong Yiu Tak, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited in 2017. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Wong holds a degree of Bachelor
of Science (Honours) from The University of Hong Kong and a Master of Law
from Peking University. He is now a serving solicitor in Hong Kong and a

consultant to Messrs. S.K. Wong & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 73, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs

Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.

Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 68, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss
Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 39 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 62, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 49, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, aged 50, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in 2008,
Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field of

accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Tian Teck Land Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
83 to 154, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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BB EIE Key Audit Matters

AREREEISEERFNEEHE - RAEHK Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
HRE B RRNERRAEENSTH - EEE were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

HeERMEXERERAVBHREALKHAZRR statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

EITRIER - BT HELEHREHEBNE context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

8o in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

REMENEE

Valuation of investment properties

BRJEEE P BIRAN T 12 R 871N 1(0) °

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BREZSZR
The key audit matter

BANERNTREEZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EREREBRFEARAMERGEEREY S - FLER
EMENTERXRRBIRES - BRESMETBRDHE
AR S IRER BT L o

The Group holds a portfolio of investment properties located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. These
investment properties are primarily represented by iISQUARE,
a shopping and entertainment complex located in Tsim Sha

Tsui, Hong Kong.

EIE ERIBINIEY) 2 (L E RV IR IR ER AT ) 3 IR FTEI TN
B FEEENENAAEER-

Management’s assessment of the fair value of investment
properties is based on valuations performed by an external
property valuer in accordance with recognised industry

standards.

Eﬁ%%ﬁfﬁﬂ’aﬁqﬂ—lﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%@b%%TE?&@?E’\JE
DU - FRRER ST EBTEENLBMN -

One of the key drivers of the valuation of investment
properties is rental income which can be volatile, particularly
in light of the current economic status of the retail industry in

Hong Kong.

B IREY R A ENEZREFEEATER
Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment

properties included the following:

o FHEIMNEMRMEEMNERE HRMELENKSRNEE
M FEIEMBE
assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued,

objectivity and independence;

e  HNSIHREMEEEZFENIMNEEEMREEEBNERE
ME R BEMREOGERS
obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group on
which the management’s assessment of the fair value of

investment properties was based;

o HSMEMGEMAHREGETDERGETARANEE G
BB
discussing with the external property valuer the valuation
methodology and key estimates and assumptions adopted

in the valuations;
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BREMERNEE

Valuation of investment properties

Key Audit Matters (continued)

DR & B BIRAN 12 R 87T BRI 1(0) °

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BRELER
The key audit matter

BN EZ N REZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as a key audit matter because the valuation of investment
properties is inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error or

potential management bias.

EHRMONILDELEAENH T - FHEINEYEGEE
BDPTER A B TR E 7 VA ME @ L BSMNE M R ERME SR E
WEEP AN EEEF RRREBANTISEER, 3
M BT HREN TSR BUER - BEESARAN E E4E
MERER (BEEAMELE  RITOTISES A LR T
BX5) REER &

with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology applied
by the external property valuer and challenging the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the valuations,
including capitalisation rates, prevailing market rents and
comparable market transactions, by comparing the key
estimates and assumptions used by the external property
valuer in the valuation of each investment property with
market available data and/or government produced market

statistics; and

ERANER - - LBEEES - BEAERERINEY
EAERMREHNAGEES RHEBEE - AR Q&
ROEE ©

comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information,
including committed rents and occupancy rates, provided
by the Group to the external property valuer with underlying

contracts and documentation.
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BREENPBRE

Information Other Than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought

to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Yau Ngai Lun, Alan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2019



meBEaRkEMEEBAR
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BE-_Z-NAF=A=1+—BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2019 2018
BfsE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
WA Revenue 3 622,729 645,617
fi55 D% Cost of services (87,239) (85,351)
ER Gross profit 535,490 560,266
Hablg A Other revenue 5 11,201 5,110
Heh (E518),Wax F 58 Other net (loss)/income 5 (2,714) 4,089
1THER Administrative expenses (39,539) (41,045)
REYEMLBESERIN Profit from operations before valuation
KRR changes in investment properties 504,438 528,420
KRB YEGEEE TR Net valuation losses on investment
properties 12(a) (270,470) (252,044)
REWMEMELEEN Profit from operations after valuation
R changes in investment properties 233,968 276,376
A R A Finance costs 6(a) (4,855) (3,140)
RRBE A2 F Profit before taxation 6 229,113 273,236
FriS it Income tax 9(a) (81,214) (85,463)
REERAR Profit and total comprehensive
2HEBALEEE income for the year 147,899 187,773
THALHEMR : Attributable to:
— RAE=RERR — Equity shareholders of the Company 73,669 108,126
— IR R — Non-controlling interests 74,230 79,647
REZRAR Profit and total comprehensive
ZHEIRALE income for the year 147,899 187,773
BREN —EXKE#HE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 11 $0.16 $0.23

FEROBE EFE 1548 Mz B A fEHEzRA —Z[ 5 The notes on pages 89 to 154 form part of these financial statements.
FERTA BIRERS AR B IE B A0 E 15 5 S A MY EE10 © Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set

out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZZB-—AF=A=+—H(UBE%IIR) At 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2019 2018
FasE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets 12(a)
— REWME — Investment properties 13,859,790 14,132,602
— HiE - B REE — Other properties, plant and equipment 65,263 68,215
13,925,053 14,200,817
REEE Current assets
FEULERSK « AT RFEI R Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 14 27,813 19,276
AR FT SRR Current tax recoverable 9(c) 33 —
BIIRRITIE K Pledged bank deposits 15 13,147 10,295
RERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 16(a) 566,645 569,394
607,638 598,965
RENEE Current liabilities
EMENAKEIETER Other payables and accruals 17 30,825 27,913
BlET & Deposits received 18 197,094 198,696
KRB &R Provision for long service payments 19 1,551 1,485
A e Obligations under finance leases 21 17 29
RERFETER1SHR Current tax payable 9(c) 14,767 14,960
244,254 243,083
REBEEEE Net current assets 363,384 355,882
EERAERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 14,288,437 14,556,699
FERBEME Non-current liabilities
IRITER — AHEIF Bank loan — secured 20 200,000 200,000
JE (T BURTHE (B Government lease premiums payable 22 1,791 1,857
BbE T E R IE Obligations under finance leases 21 - 17
EEHRIBEARE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 80,305 72,190
282,096 274,064
EEFHE NET ASSETS 14,006,341 14,282,635
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SZE BB RE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZB-AE=A=+—H(LUB%ZIR) At 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2019 2018
(=2 Fr T
Note $°000 $'000

BEARR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
&7 Share capital 23(b) 121,830 121,830
(] Reserves 7,084,387 7,224,347
7,206,217 7,346,177
FEER IR R R Non-controlling interests 6,800,124 6,936,458
AR TOTAL EQUITY 14,006,341 14,282,635

&

HER T NFNAZ T BT EE -

BZE BZE
EEE B
EF164EMMMEB AR EIHRRE — &7 o

Cheong Hooi Hong

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2019.

Cheong Kheng Lim

Director

The notes on pages 89 to 154 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z-NAF=A=1+—BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARERRRES
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FER
RE  EBftRE  REER BE  RREE ERAE
Non-
Share Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve earnings Total interests equity
i3 Tr T T Tr Tr Tr
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
R2017F4R1AH&SE Balance at 1 April 2017 121,830 900,051 6433646 7456427 7,072,775 14,529,202
rEEREREE Changes in equity for the year:
AEERFIR Profit and total comprehensive
EAE N income for the year - - 108,126 108,126 79,647 187,773
BR E—0REE Dividends approved in respect of
BOERRRS the previous financial year 10(0) - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188)
BRAHREE Dividends declared in respect of
SRS the current financial year 10(8) - - (109,188) (109,188) - (109,188)
ST FEPERRAR SR EOR% S, Dividends paid to non-controling
interests — - - - (215,964) (215,964)
MW2018%£3831HK  Balance at 31 March 2018
2018F4 A1 HE9AER  and 1 April 2018 121,830 900,951 6,323,396 7,346,177 6,936,458 14,282,635
REERREE Changes in equity for the year:
AEEENR Profit and total comprehensive
EEL Nk income for the year - - 73,669 73,669 74,230 147,899
BRE—IBEE Dividends approved in respect of
HAERRE the previous financial year 10(0) - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188)
BRABHFE Dividends declared in respect of
SRR E the current financial year 10(a) - - (104,441)  (104,441) - (104,441)
IR AREREOARS.  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - (210,564) (210,564)
M201953F31 HV4E: Balance at 31 March 2019 121,830 900,951 6,183,436 7,206,217 6,800,124 14,006,341
FBOBE EF 14BN EBAMISHREA—3H © The notes on pages 89 to 154 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-_Z-NAF=A=1+—BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2019 2018
s Fr T
Note $°000 $°000
TR Operating activities
B A AT A Profit before taxation 229,113 273,236
FHEEIEE - Adjustments for:
— FBUHA — Interest income (10,473) 4,271)
— BB — Finance costs 4,855 3,140
— e — Depreciation 4,563 4713
— REMEGEEERFEE — Net valuation losses on
investment properties 270,470 252,044
— REETEEEEFE — Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 2 6
— SNESE N 58 (& F)) — Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 2,719 (4,099)
EEESR AL EF Operating profit before changes in
working capital 501,249 524,769
FEARBRTR « 5]& MTEREK (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable,

(), deposits and prepayments (8,030) 3,439
Hth e~ 3k N B ET & FR 1 AN Increase in other payables and accruals 2,961 4,605
BUeETE O d), /a0 (Decrease)/increase in deposits received (1,602) 337
RHIRBS S EEL I, (M) Increase/(decrease) in provision for long

service payments 66 (28)
BEEERBHRS Cash generated from operations 494,644 533,122
BEfFIA Tax paid
— BN EENEF — Hong Kong profits tax paid (73,185) (81,976)
— B EFIE — PRC tax paid (140) (270)
RE TR FASHNREFE Net cash generated from

operating activities 421,319 450,876
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BE-_Z-—NLF=A=1+—BLFE(UBYIR) Forthe year ended 31 March 2019 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE£RER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2018
s T Tz
Note $°000 $°000
RETE Investing activities
R ERSS Interest received 9,966 4,214
BABRTEENMNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets
(T EFEREME) other than investment properties (1,614) (516)
WEWES MR Payment for expenditure on
investment properties (371) (8,086)
BEEEEEESNIEA Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 1 2
EAKIIRTTIE R (380) 982> (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits (2,852) 124,686
RETEMBNRLSTE Net cash generated from investing
activities 5,130 125,300
A& E B Financing activities
EAEEHERSHEARESH Capital element of finance lease rentals paid ~ 16(b) (29) 29)
AT T HE Payment for government lease premiums
payable 16(b) (63) (60)
2 BT HE TS Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable 16(b) (96) (99)
EATHRITEFRFE Interest paid on bank loan 16(b) (4,563) (2,845)
BT A iR KB AR Other borrowing costs paid 16(b) (249) (249)
B TARE Dividends paid (213,629) (218,376)
B IEIE R AR R AR S Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (210,564) (215,964)
RMEFBFTANREFE Net cash used in financing activities (429,193) (437,622)
fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%—f’ L)} Net (decrease)/increase in cash
WD), EIFE and cash equivalents (2,744) 138,554
5@201 8/2017F481HHK Cash and cash equivalents at
HERBEEEY 1 April 2018/2017 569,394 430,830
INEEREE N Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (5) 10
M3ASTENEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
REZEY 16(a) 566,645 569,394

$80B EF 1548 HHTsE

BABHRERN—ED

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

The notes on pages 89 to 154 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(L #&¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

)

(i

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Annual Report 2018-2019 3§

95



96

B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FEETTBER@®

(f)

HEEE @)

(i) KEHEER
MEAEEIELAEES
BEMERE  AREREE
HONReERERMREN
MR AFBEIBETP
P s BNEHMEELTE
BRI EEEMEERR
HEA AR - MEFTS R
RS ERETRER AR
EFNRAENERIED o X
HeEEEEMNE AR
BRI -

S E 5B T i e Y B K
ARZEGEEHERHNE
BB ARIREYMENYE
BRIN2BREET () °

e

Hip%E - BiE MR ERBHTET
BB AR RE(NE) - BIRE
AT AERABAROAAT BT ¢

— T REF UHBEEFHRE
ETATAER 2 &
RETE - AR
B BB A T %
404

— &M KE 5F
&

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable
(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents

and other receivables) and accounts receivable.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

= fixed-rate financial assets and other
receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and

— accounts receivable: discount rate used

in the measurement of the accounts

receivable.
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL. model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are
always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(h)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments and

accounts receivable (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset
is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments and

accounts receivable (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s

external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status and credit risk ratings.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments and

accounts receivable (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying

amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
accounts receivable is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on
financial assets not classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (e.g. accounts and other
receivables). Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only where there
was objective evidence of impairment. Objective

evidence of impairment included:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

Impairment losses were written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of accounts receivable, whose
recovery was considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written
off against accounts receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt were
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account were reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed

at the end of each reporting period to identify indications

that other properties, plant and equipment and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement

of financial position may be impaired or an impairment

loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

(h)

(Continued)

(i)

(i

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group

is required to prepare an interim financial report in

compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in

respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the

end of the interim period, the Group applies the same

impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as

it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)(i)

and (ji)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is

required before payment of that consideration is due.

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(h)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the

receivables are stated at cost less allowance for credit losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing

costs (see note 1(1)).

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Annual Report 2018-2019 3§

107



108

(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

ER = n_I_JBIEE (&)

()

RekREEEY
R MRS EENERTERRE

& - FRRRITNE I S HERNE
HATF 3R+ DA RE EAAN R B 1 Ak 1 D 9%
BIEE - BLIBE AR SHIRE 7
EANIRSEHE - IEARIZHNERE
E@% N WEBAZ=EARNE

c GRIGERETERME * B
@&ﬁ%ﬁﬁmm BN EERA
FER  WHENASEIERSEE 3
DEBTES - BE KBS EEMR
FRFEET (N)() Pk M BUR T TTE B E &
1S o

I=Ep ]

() RHEBSRMNMAEHEIE
RET &R
e FESE BFER -
AERFTERFTEIERREIE
FEMBFRA  HERER
HAEBRFHFEEAZRG - A
TEENFREESERERN
EEREE Bl LR EA
ZIRETIER

iy BRKIERHE
AR IEBESERASETH
BESR B FTIR R Y & KO AR IE T8
ERERTRE QK IEHMER
R EHEKRN(AREEBE)
FRIERR o

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

1

B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(1)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(0)(0)-

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Further details of the

Group’s revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

(8)

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(v)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group:

HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of
investment property

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22, Foreign currency transactions and

advance consideration

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods

have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Annual Report 2018-2019 3§

115



116

WA
ARBHEBEHERMERE -

WARFEREMENC W EYHE S WAL
7o

$‘i%ﬁ%ﬁftﬁ’\]§}5%ﬁ” THBECT
—NEFR-_Z-NF=ZA=t—HLFE "
$‘illﬂﬁ 2 Z EE N B10%H E[IF

)J

K%Rﬁ%*?ﬁ%&%ﬁ%ﬁ BNT ¥ 26 7H
g Fit - EE—AREDBOEBDH
BERBRGEHFAER -

ERAEEMERAENRAMEETRER

BRREARKMBE(THE]) - R EE
ERIEETE VEI

HABR AR (B518), W F 58

B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not include
any customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the

Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.
No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Other Revenue and Net (Loss)/Income

2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
HAn A Other revenue
2 WA Interest income 10,473 4,271
IRATR TR EFTESHEEE  Compensation from early termination of lease - 273
Hth Others 728 566
11,201 5,110
Hit(FR) WEFE Other net (loss)/income
BB B & ERRHE Net loss on disposals of fixed assets @ ©)
HNESSE N, (E518), /B F)F58  Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (2,712) 4,095
(2,714) 4,089

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BRBIBIZA 6 Profit Before Taxation
BRIADEFIE IR (GTA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2019 2018
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
(@) BB (@) Finance costs
RITERAE Interest on bank loan 4,511 2,793
E A fE TR A Other borrowing costs 250 250
B B B Interest on government lease
premiums payable 94 97
4,855 3,140
(b) BIEAX (b)  Staff costs
e TERHMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 44,319 43,033
FERFGRIKRGT B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,297 1,193
45,616 44,226
(c) HfEAE (c) Otheritems
HEMENES WA LBRE Gross rental income from
investment properties (622,729) (645,617)
W EEXH Less: Direct outgoings 87,239 85,351
(535,490) (560,266)
ZE RN & Auditor’s remuneration
— 2R — audit services 1,286 1,286
— ISR — tax services 94 131
— H AR — other services 365 365
e Depreciation 4,563 4,713
MR SR BB 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable 304 =
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 ESHME 7 Directors’ Emoluments
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) i M A &) (H# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Twm BN ERD) B YE 2205 R 5 = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
E =411 RAFTE 2019
ExHE REVNE BETEA 5 B
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fr T T T T
$000 $°000 $000 $000 $°000
HITES Executive Directors
e Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,548 700 - 2,348
IR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,567* 700 - 3,367
BiE Cheong Keng Hool 100 1,574 300 - 1,974
B4 Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,845 300 - 2,245
EIA1L Cheong Chong Ling 100 1,449¢ 120 21 1,690

FHTES Non-executive Director

L Sin Cho Chiu, Charles” 100 550 - - 650

BIEHITEE Independent

Non-executive Directors

EEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
=R Wong Yiu Tak 340 - - - 340
s Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170

1,450 9,533 2,120 21 13,124
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 ESEMME@m

7 Directors’ Emoluments continued)

e o A RREHE 2018
B2 REDN= BYTEAEAT (5N fmE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T FT T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,590 700 — 2,390
SEIRM Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,517* 700 - 3,317
$EfmpE Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,563 300 — 1,963
BE Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,772 300 = 2,172
e Cheong Chong Ling 100 1.008# 120 21 1,539
FHITES Non-executive Director
izl Sin Cho Chiu, Charles” 100 550 = = 650
BIFHTES Independent
Non-executive Directors
AZE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 — — — 340
hES Yau Allen Lee-nam
(R=F—t5F (passed away
+ A= TR BEEE)  on 25 July 2017) 108 = = = 108
HIRE Wong Yiu Tak
(R=Z—+F (appointed with effect from
+TA=BAEME) 3 October 2017) 168 - — — 168
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 = = = 170
1,386 9,290 2,120 21 12,817
@ EEEABEREEMNEEREEEMEN * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of a residential

&F - HETHAELA1,581,000T(=ZF— N\
& YA FEES H£458,150,0007T)

# EEETAEAERL /N EEYEN #
BH - EETHEX 51,569,000 (=T — N\

F |-

A HEBEENESRUERHE XA -F A
—NEFERAZTRBERER -

property to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an estimated rental value of
approximately $1,581,000 (2018: an aggregate estimated rental value of

the properties approximately $3,150,000).

The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of a residential
property to Miss Cheong Chong Ling with an estimated rental value of
approximately $1,569,000 (2018: Nil).

The vacation of office of Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles as a director took

effect on 26 June 2019.
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EeMEAL
—E- \ER-_E-NEEERUEESMNE
MATHEBRNRABNES  HMESEHIER
MIFET7 ©

9 FREH
(@) FeiEmkAMEEEBAXR
FRAREI PRGBS

8

Individuals with Highest Emoluments
The five highest paid individuals for 2018 and 2019 are all directors of

the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

Income Tax

(@

Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents:

2019 2018
F5 F5
$°000 $'000
AHEABIE — FEBFIBH  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
INEE R TASER Provision for the year 73,050 77,444
LATEF 2B R Over-provision in respect of prior years (90) (60)
72,960 77,384
AHABIE — Current tax — PRC
REETIIAEN Provision for the year 139 222
EEHIE Deferred tax
KEMEA R BERNE Changes in fair value of investment properties (319) 65
Ty = RMELEE D Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 8,434 7,792
8,115 7,857
81,214 85,463

BTG ERRIZAFERGET
JERTFREFILA16.5% ( —F— \4F :
16.5% ) BB 5T E o HERFIIE 2%
FR B AR RE 2 B 765 A AR P I8 A O B SR B

H o
>
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The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year. PRC taxation is calculated based on the applicable
rate of taxation in accordance with the relevant tax rules and

regulations of the PRC.



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 3
9 FER @) 9 Income Tax (continued)
(b) PTEH HMiziE AR5 (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEiHaf MR - accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
BT ADE R Profit before taxation 229,113 273,236
IRBIERRABI R ES% A Notional tax on profit before taxation,
B AR R G E R LAY calculated at the rates applicable to
el e profits in the countries concerned 38,335 44,335
TAHE S HEIFIESZ  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 47,945 48,740
HAEHNEAORIBERZE  Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,976) (7,552)
VATE 4F [ ZE 45 R Over-provision in prior years (90) (60)
BRRHIE S H Actual tax expense 81,214 85,463
(€) #E AR R TREZAE] (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
FRB%A - statement of financial position represents:
2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $’000
REEBBFIETHER Provision for Hong Kong profits tax
for the year 73,050 77,444
B EHFISH Provisional profits tax paid (58,334) (62,503)
14,716 14,941
FR I PRC taxation 18 19
14,734 14,960
Rk : Representing:
ANERFE I FT S AL Current tax recoverable (33) —
ERFETFRASHL Current tax payable 14,767 14,960
14,734 14,960
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(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FEF @ 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELHRIEAE : (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
B ARG ISR R R A IR 18 The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
BEMNHEKIDMAEZLEHUT : consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BB
REYHE R ERN
B mERHE k]
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
of investment the related
properties depreciation Total
Fr Frx Frx
$°000 $°000 $°000
RE FHIFER Deferred tax arising from:
EAERIE ¢
R2017F4 /818 At 1 April 2017 941 63,392 64,333
FEEm P Charged to profit or loss 65 7,792 7,857
20183 A31H At 31 March 2018 1,006 71,184 72,190
K2018F4 A1 H At 1 April 2018 1,006 71,184 72,190
Bz (T A)  HIB (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (319) 8,434 8,115
M20199F3A31H At 31 March 2019 687 79,618 80,305
(e) RERWELERIEEE : (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
BRI FTH A SETEER - AR In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
RNEEHETE BN S AN E ST the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
BH AR ERT @A T A S EE - cumulative tax losses of $145,881,000 (2018: $145,881,000)
7N & [ 8 K B 145,881,000 (=& as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
— /\%F : 145,881,0007T) ¥ R 5T i 75 the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
EEEREENELETIBEE - B jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
WITBE - ELBBEBTRERR current tax legislation.
By o
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B ZME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 KRB
(@) AFERSAREERRR

/BN

10 Dividends
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

2019 2018
Frx Tt
$°000 $000
BN YSSED] Interim dividend declared and paid of
A ERfR B A%0.227T $0.22 per share (2018: $0.23 per share)
(20184 : Ff%0.237T) 104,441 109,188
R E HIER A H 182  Final dividend proposed after the end of
IR AR B FA%0.227T  the reporting period of $0.22 per share
(20184 : &f%0.237T) (2018: $0.23 per share) 104,441 109,188
208,882 218,376

W& HIfR AR 4 B IR 2 0 Ik )R H
REMAREREHERERAERREA

==
=]

o

.

b) BRE-BBRFERNQT
BERR > IRARFERE

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous

REZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2019 2018
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
B E—BIEAE - WK Final dividend in respect of the previous

AN EHAE R financial year, approved and paid

REARR B &A%0.237T during the year, of $0.23 per share

(20184 : #f%0.237T) (2018: $0.23 per share) 109,188 109,188

11 SREBFN — ERREE
BEREXBAREBAFENR A ER
J% B & 165 & # 78,669,000 7 ( = F — )\
 : 108,126,000 7T ) K& B EH1TH K H
474,731,824 (=F — )\ & : 474,731,824
BFE T —NFRZZF-NFAHEE
TERTEEEAR ) o

11 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $73,669,000
(2018: $108,126,000) and 474,731,824 (2018: 474,731,824) shares
in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive shares in

existence in 2018 and 2019.
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(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BEEE 12 Fixed Assets
@) @
REWE Hit% - BERZE
Investment

properties Other properties, plant and equipment

HER
FER
BEYE Hitz HitEE et k]
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
Fr T T T T
$000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
AT EE : Cost or valuation:
MR2018F4H1H At 1 April 2018 14,132,602 101,824 34,902 136,726 14,269,328
SEH R Exchange adjustments (2,713) - - - (2,713)
WE Additions 371 - 1,614 1,614 1,985
BE Disposals - - (84) (84) (84)
AR EEAE Fair value adjustments (270,470) - - - (270,470)
MR201943H31H At 31 March 2019 13,859,790 101,824 36,432 138,256 13,998,046
RE: Representing:
%N Cost - 101,824 36,432 138,256 138,256
& —2019%F  Valuation — 2019 13,859,790 - - — 13,859,790
13,859,790 101,824 36,432 138,256 13,998,046
Z5HE . Accumulated depreciation:
MR2018F4H1H At 1 April 2018 - 35,398 33,113 68,511 68,511
AEEHE Charge for the year - 3,519 1,044 4,563 4,563
iz B ] Written back on disposals - - (81) 81) (81)
M201943H31H At 31 March 2019 - 38,917 34,076 72,993 72,993
IREFE Net book value:
MR201943H31H At 31 March 2019 13,859,790 62,907 2,356 65,263 13,925,053
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12 EEEE @

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

@ @ (@ (continued)
REME Hin% - BE K&
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
HER
EEME L-iikyES HAh & Nt e
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
BARSRGE - Cost or valuation:
R2017F4A18 At 1 April 2017 14,377,471 101,824 34,453 136,277 14,513,748
ER AR Exchange adjustments 4,089 - = — 4,089
e Additions 3,086 — 516 516 3,602
BRE Disposals = = 67) 67) (67)
AR EEFAE Fair value adjustments (252,044) - - = (252,044)
20183 H31H At 31 March 2018 14,132,602 101,824 34,902 136,726 14,269,328
3 Representing:
(DN Cost = 101,824 34,902 136,726 136,726
{451 — 20184 Valuation — 2018 14,132,602 — — — 14,132,602
14,132,602 101,824 34,902 136,726 14,269,328
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation:
M2017F4818  At1 April 2017 — 31,878 31,979 63,857 63,857
REERE Charge for the year — 3,520 1,193 4,713 4713
B B R[] Written back on disposals — — (59) (59) (59)
7201843 H31H At 31 March 2018 — 35,398 33,113 68,511 68,511
BREFE Net book value:
M201843H31H At 31 March 2018 14,132,602 66,426 1,789 68,215 14,200,817
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12.E§Fﬁ

(b)

R-ZB-—NAF=A=+—8 K&
MEBFEERES (TRBLRN1E
WPHAZE)  FEIEFLNE TE

B iFET¥RENETEMN
BHHOHN—EBRELZESBHN—E -

HiWEBBEMNESNEEES N
BERAE —ETERENETE
iz ~ — BRI — (B AL K& N IE

BRRE

0 2RBEER
TREJNAREE R HEHBL
BRRRFEEMGFENRE
MERAREE -ZFVEER
A BB BRELERDE13
HIARBEFEIAREN=
BERABERER AEE2R
AT BT A R 8 A B
BB RIZEMEEE - i
EEAABEFEREMER
DIRRER :

—  EERMEE  REAE
L LN
BRERTANEARAE
8 A0 KAL)
AT B S B

— F_ERMLE: A%
BRwmABRIRES—
BRmABEREAR)
WARRESRAEAR A B
R AERSAELRE
B - TABEBAERE
RERTHS IR 8 AR

— F=EAMHE: FEEX
MR B R A B R =

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

At 31 March 2019, investment properties comprise iISQUARE

(b)

(excluding an office on 9th Floor), certain floors of Goodluck

Industrial Centre, certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building,

a floor of Euro Trade Centre and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other

properties comprise an office on 9th Floor of iISQUARE, certain

units of an industrial property, a unit of a commercial property

and two residential properties in Hong Kong.

)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
18, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

= Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs
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(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @
(b) REVENRAABEFTZ@

0 2rREEERGE)
AREBEN EARZIAR AL BEFE
MRENERREF -ELAR
FE_ERMHE - BEREE=
BRMGENREDEINET

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
None of the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level
2 valuations. The investment properties which are
categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:

2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
BEEEERTEMNDAAMEE Recurring fair value measurement
WS EE =BRGE Investment properties categorised
HIREE into Level 3 valuations:
— R BB EE — Commercial properties
in Hong Kong 13,439,490 13,710,700
— IR BRI S % — Commercial properties in the PRC 40,480 46,382
— R BB T — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 379,820 375,520
13,859,790 14,132,602

REBE_ZE-NFE=Z—N
FZA=+—"RALFE EF
—EREE R 2 I E D
RER - MRE=ERIEE
ASRE T o REBMBKZ
AREBEERHERERH
s BAFRIAR 45 A R A RS -

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @)
(b) BREVENLAEBEREZ @

(i)

(i)

HEERX
R=_FE—NE=A=+—8
AR B FSH R B H) % & ) =2
BB FEAER — B
HEETHERARAR(EE
ITHEABEBAEMBSER
SEZER  BYHWEGHZD
EMEMNE RFTEER AL
TR 24850 ) EfTE RS - &b
ARz TERER - &
B HE{EER R E S @
HAFNF E 3R B HEI T ED
BERMAER -

FZERAABEFENE

AEBRBUREEREE - B
MERFESBABAR L - I
ZRIMELEXRNEREH
HEmERENRESBANE
RN NBEREMENR
REE - EANTHERGHA

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were revalued at 31 March 2019 by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BHIFHT : below:
EA{tRHEE HEENEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
RENE Investment properties 2019 2018 2019 2018
AR EBREENE Commercial properties in Hong Kong 200% —5.00%  2.29% —500%  92.9% —100%  98.3% — 100%
AP EIREE % Commercial properties in the PRC 6.50% 6.50% 50.1% 44.4%
URBBNTENE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% — 4.50%  4.00% — 4.50% 100% 100%

REMENAABEFERHN
MERKELREER - BREXR(
LR R LR -

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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12 EEEE @

(b)

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

REYENAABETTE @ (b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

F-BRAAEEAENE (i)
FH(#)

AEENE=BROABER

EREVE BT -

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)
The movements during the year in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

UREEN IR B IREEE

[EE2YES [GEX/ES TEYE

Commercial Commercial Industrial

properties properties properties

in Hong Kong in the PRC in Hong Kong

Frx Fr T

$°000 $°000 $°000

R2017F4818  At1 April 2017 13,981,390 41,641 354,440
AR Exchange adjustments — 4,089 —
prech Additions 3,086 — —
NI Fair value adjustments (273,776) 652 21,080
201843 H31H At 31 March 2018 13,710,700 46,382 375,520
R2018F4H1H At April 2018 13,710,700 46,382 375,520
SE H AR Exchange adjustments - (2,713) -
HE Additions 371 - -
DA EEFHE Fair value adjustments (271,581) (3,189) 4,300
#2019F3H31H At 31 March 2019 13,439,490 40,480 379,820

BREMEND A BEABREL
AREREMEERARNR
BYRGEBRFEIRE P’
R o REEANERE T HERN
PABEZFHREARER
BEPRBEERANYE -
ZHEEEHRETEAREE
SR LS KEER - Mg

A A2x B34 ot B2 48R
HHBSREBERTE -

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation losses on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. All the valuation changes recognised in profit or
loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end
of the reporting period. The valuation changes will only
affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flows

of the Group.
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
() YHEREFENDFWOT : () The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
2019 2018
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
EES In Hong Kong
— RHHE — Long leases 162,838 143,259
— R HEE — Medium-term leases 13,719,379 14,009,387
FERBIFEIN Outside Hong Kong
— RHIFRE — Medium-term leases 40,480 46,382
13,922,697 14,199,028
(d) HMEEBIRZRM KE - BELRT (d) Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor
o vehicles.
(e) MNBEHRMRED  KERURE () At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office
HERENRAERERTFES equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $17,000
17,0007C( =& —/\4F : 46,0007T) ° (2018: $46,000).
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12 EEEE @

(f)

AEENCLTHEREREME - &
LHERNAPREETF L E
BREREBEEIHARESR  ERAA
EFERENEE - HE-T—NEF
A=+ BLEFERBREPER
A A K B B £ & 8,854,000 7T
(ZZ—/\£ : 10,097,0007T) °

NEBBEHERER A TIRE
RAMETRBOTANE - HRHE
RIENE -

AEBRBEIAIMRNEEHERH
RN SERENFEBEMNT

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(f) The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2019

were $8,854,000 (2018: $10,097,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

2019 2018
Fx Tt

$°000 $000

1R Within 1 year 423,028 449,062
1612 {B5F R After 1 year but within 5 years 692,766 384,616
5% 1% After 5 years 230,499 259,132
1,346,293 1,092,810

EEEKH

RIpEHRRER @ SRITERRINUE
T & /4 13,339,037,000 7T ( = & — )\
4 : 13,633,161,0007T ) K E & & &=
1EREIR(28ME20) o

(9) Pledge of assets
At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
value of $13,339,037,000 (2018: $13,633,161,000) were

pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

Annual Report 2018-2019 3§

131



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
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13 B FE

TRIBAREREHBRRFE - B52E

13 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

FRRE SN - FTISE MRS AT B - Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
Frib R LAl
Proportion of ownership interest
MBS R AKEH BHEXRF H B
ARER BEmY ERTRBERAFE BERER 58 DEANE TEEH
Place of Group’s held
incorporation  Particulars of issued effective by the held by
Name of company and operation and paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
S ERBERR AR BB 360,000,0007L 7 & 50.01%  46.41% 3.6% MERBRITAER
360,000,0004% 17
Associated International Hotels Hong Kong $360,000,000 divided into Property investment and
Limited 360,000,000 shares investment holding
Sparkland Investments Limited B 27 Rl D 100% 100% — REER
Hong Kong $2 divided into 2 shares Investment holding
EHERAH BB 27 R2R R 100% - 100% FAMEERELR
Harkam Limited Hong Kong $2 divided into 2 shares Property and investment
holding
EAER) AR BB 8,000,0007t5 & 100% 100% - WERE
1,600,0008% %13
Metropolitan (International) Limited Hong Kong $8,000,000 divided into Property investment
1,600,000 shares
Associated International &5 207t 7 As2RRAR (D 50.01% - 100% &
Resorts Limited Hong Kong $20 divided into 2 shares Inactive
BEBRAA BB 200,0007L5 & 50.01% - 100% MEKE
200,000/ 17
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong $200,000 divided into Property investment
200,000 shares
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(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 M{l’% UNCIIC ) 13 Subsidiaries (Continued)
TR S B BEHE AR A 7 A Ea e The following tables list out the summarised financial information
BERRE - ZRrRAEEH—HEEER relating to Associated International Hotels Limited, the only subsidiary
IR E A B AR o FEIERRAR R AT(E4E of the Group which has material non-controlling interests. Total
ZSHAEN 549.99% o Nk 25| B S5 E RBHEE ownership interest held by non-controlling interests was 49.99%. The
EREBANARIFETEAAKERTREEE o summarised financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(a) XBERE (@) Summarised results

2019 2018
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
WA Revenue 610,587 632,541

AREEm A & Profit and total comprehensive income
EHEWAERE for the year 148,485 159,318

R IS AR BR A s FE A Profit for the year allocated to
AR a A non-controlling interests 74,230 79,647
F IR AR BR AR B Dividends to non-controlling interests (210,564) (215,964)
S . e
b) EEREERE (b) Summarised assets and liabilities

2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
FEREEE Non-current assets 13,564,010 13,832,557
MENEE Current assets 550,988 547,569
14,114,998 14,380,126
mEA G Current liabilities (232,211) (232,928)
EmBAaE Non-current liabilities (280,220) (271,916)
(5612,431) (504,844)
BEFE NET ASSETS 13,602,567 13,875,282

IEPERR AR B RS A BT A F1AY  Non-controlling interests’ proportionate
BEFEREEDE share of the subsidiary’s net assets 6,800,124 6,936,458
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B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 MiEB 2B )
c) BRERERE

13 Subsidiaries (Continued)
() Summarised cash flows

2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
KRBTGS HIR £ 558 Net cash generated from operating
activities 413,755 443,854
REREFTSHIR 558 Net cash generated from investing
activities 4,523 125,073
BB R BT MIR 2558 Net cash used in financing activities (426,200) (435,282)
REREFE Net cash flows (7,922) 133,645
=k = =h . .
14 FEWERFX ~ Sl RFEMNAR 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
2019 2018
Fr T
$°000 $'000
FEUAR R Accounts receivable 18,056 13,126
B EEEIEEE Less: Allowance for credit losses (note 14(b))
(MisE14(b)) (1,575) (1,575)
16,481 11,551
HIEINSEE Deposits and prepayments 11,332 7,725
27,813 19,276
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14 FEWERF ~ ST RFEN K@)

(@)

RRER DA

REEHMRER  FEBKE
K e REMKANERER(E
MRS EBIRER) REA IO T :

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(@)

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
for credit losses) which was included in accounts receivable,

deposits and prepayments as of the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

2019 2018
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
R EA(FE) Current (Note) 14,798 10,024
#EDEA Less than 1 month past due 1,606 1,228
#EA1 2= 3E B 1 to 3 months past due 65 282

1 ERER RS (R A More than 3 months but less than
BALR12(@A 12 months past due 12 13
B ERRR A1 218 A More than 12 months past due - 4
[l Amounts past due 1,683 1,627
16,481 11,551

i EEESERERS RSB ER
oK 70 HA e Uk BR 5% 10,946,000 7T (= &
—\4F : 9,374,0007T) °

RR—RESAERAIE - EFXER
H—RATRETEX eIk
S - AEBEEBRREMFESISE
HHiEE24(a) ©

Note: The amount includes the receivable for lease incentives of
$10,946,000 (2018: $9,374,000) which is not past due.

Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

in note 24(a).
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14 FEUWERF ~ ST RFEN K@)

(b)

B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

FEU B ZRME (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
REBEANEZEEEREECERBEESN The movement in the specific allowance for credit losses during
T the year is as follows:
2019 2018
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
72018/2017%4 A1H At 1 April 2018/2017 1,575 1,575
B ERREEE Impairment losses recognised 304 —
E PSS AT Y El 2sE Uncollectible amounts written off (304) =
M3H31H At 31 March 1,575 1,575
LB Y FE W AR X (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
*E?F (EBZFERDFEI95 &/ Comparative information under HKAS 39, Financial
TH: BRRFEIMENZLEER instruments: Recognition and measurement
RZZE—/\FHA—HA» REEX Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
BRREZEZS /R—FZ'%EEW/WTE when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note
B8 (2B sE1(h) () — K== )\ 1(h)() — policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March
FHA—BAEAMER) - 2018, accounts receivable of $1,575,000 was determined to
—N\F=ZA=+—H " ElK EE EF' be impaired. Consequently, specific allowance for credit losses
B4 ) i A& Rk B W BR 3k & 1,575,000 of $1,575,000 was recognised.
7L e At - EEERNEEBBREE
YE4751,575,0007T °
M Bl 2 REAR A R B RUE R FE U BR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
REBRBEOTIT - individually nor collectively considered to be impaired was as
follows:
2018
Tt
$'000
R EAskS BRE Neither past due nor impaired 10,024
el K(EDE Less than 1 month past due 1,228
EEA1 Z=3E B 1 to 3 months past due 282
B EIFRE3ME AEL 288 More than 3 months but less than 12 months past due 13
wHAR A1 218 A More than 12 months past due 4
1,627
11,551
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14 FEUWERFR ~ ST RFENK @)

(c)

REBENEWERI @)

RI(EB S5 ERI)E395% £ Bl
TH: BRRAEIMEINZ LR
BRH(E)
REHASOR AR E M KRR B
2B R BN EREEES -

EREER A RENEERRRER
EAREEARFRBERN—REL
B - BEERS  REAEESS
MR EEERL EEANE - MAERE
BRADBAR AR 28U E - FTIAEZA
FRULEHERE LR

15 BIRHEBITER

N=

FAFR=F)/\F=A=+—H8"

IRITIFARE AEER - R —FKIEERTT
EVERITE R (2EIME20)

16 RERREEEY

(@

RekReEENEE

14

5

16

Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
(Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39, Financial

instruments: Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2019 and 2018, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2019 2018

F Tt

$000 $’000

RITEEATER Deposits with banks 512,160 526,535
RITFER RS Cash at bank and in hand 54,485 42,859
566,645 569,394
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16 WERBEEEY @)

(b)

METHMEENAGZY

iR -

TERAFIANEERE A AELNE
BEE  ETERERSRIRSE

o

o)

BERYMELNBEREZAR

MRS RECKIARKRDREREK
PERGEARERERNBE LD

financing activities:

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which

cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

A o financing activities.
RITER BEHE S
—BER i AT HfE EAFES EEr
Government
Obligations lease
Bank loan  under finance premiums Interest
— secured leases payable payables Total
Tr Tr Tr T Fr
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
(PfzE20) (MfzE21) (MzE22)
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
#20185F4A1H At 1 April 2018 200,000 46 1,920 236 202,202
RERSRERE : Changes from financing
cash flows:
EAREHREMER  Capital element of finance
BARZ S lease rentals paid - (29) - - (29)
TRBFHE Payment for government lease
premiums payable - - (63) - (63)
BB ERN S Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable - - - (96) (96)
ENBTERANE Interest paid on bank loan - - - (4,563) (4,563)
BT E A AE T A Other borrowing costs paid - - - (249) (249)
BEREHE Total changes from financing
3 cash flows - (29) (63) (4,908) (5,000)
Other changes:
SBITETHIE Interest on bank loan - - - 4,511 4511
H A& A Other borrowing costs - - - 250 250
FENBFHERNE Interest on government lease
premiums payable - - - 94 94
HinZeiesn Total other changes - - - 4,855 4,855
R201953A31A At 31 March 2019 200,000 17 1,857 183 202,057
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(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 IRENBELEEEY @) 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
b) MEETEBFIEENEEZE (b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
BE : @) financing activities: (Continued)
RITER HEME FEfY
— HEA A T8 RIS Fat
Government
Obligations lease
Bank loan  under finance premiums Interest
— secured leases payable payables Total
T T T T T
$:000 $000 $000 $000 $000
GEZ0) (Pk21) GEZ2)
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
R2017F4 818 At 1 April 2017 200,000 75 1,980 289 202,344
REHSRERE : Changes from financing
cash flows:
EAREHREMER  Capital element of finance
BARZS lease rentals paid — (29) — - (29)
TRBFE Payment for government lease
premiums payable - = (60) = (60)
BB ERS Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable — — — (99) (99)
ENBTERANE Interest paid on bank loan = - - (2,845) (2,845)
B EME AR Other borrowing costs paid - - - (249) (249)
MEREHE Total changes from financing
290H cash flows - (29) (60) (3,193) (3.282)
Hing g Other changes:
SRTETFIE Interest on bank loan = = — 2,793 2,793
H A& A Other borrowing costs = = = 250 250
ENBFHERN S Interest on government lease
premiums payable — — — 97 97
Hit a4 Total other changes = = = 3,140 3,140
R20185£3A31H At 31 March 2018 200,000 46 1,920 236 202,202
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17 HtuEN R REGTEHR 17 Other Payables and Accruals
FrE B R R R BT B BB —F NG All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled
f5F o within one year.
18 BWET £ 18 Deposits Received
& T 133,495,000 ot ( = & — )\ &F : All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
106,388,0007T ) M & FEsT A BB — F 18 except for $133,495,000 (2018: $106,388,000) which is expected to
BN FTAEBWET S Tat N —F NS o be settled after more than one year.
19 RHIRBS%EME 19 Provision for Long Service Payments
Fr
$°000
201854 81H At 1 April 2018 1,485
REFFHR AR Provision made for the year 66
R2019%F3A31H At 31 March 2019 1,551
RIEDTECREIED) - NEBBFILEER Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
AFHLA LM B TREEBER - EREFR to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
TREEH—EM3R - BNEBEIZEHET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
RENF S RRBEFEH - BMEEANEERK of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
STEINBASBELNERESETE - A% the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
B8 A BB R EEEREMFIBRERD by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
R o attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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20

IRITER — BIEH
R-ZT—NAE=F=+—8  RBITEZNE
FERINE

20 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2019, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

2019 2018

Fr T

$°000 $'000

1FRBE2FERN After 1 year but within 2 years — 200,000
2F1Z{E5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 200,000 =
200,000 200,000

RZT—=F+A+tH A2FNHEL
A — SIHEBBEERR AR HE—HIRTT
132 T — 13 & 300,000,000 7T &9 i & 15
ZoRZBE—A"FENA=1AH  ZWEA
RIEZRITE L — AT B - B abE 2
RER=FZ=-FT—NF+ANB - £F
AEETHEHGT  Z@BEHREEE—F
EEMEE_FT-_—F+HANH - %R
TREZLN—MHEeEs TREEEE (2K
MizE12(g)) E —BEEAEHL RE TR
TER(2EMFE15) NE - ZSHREH
EEEAER R-T—h&E=A=1+—
B+ R{E:E MR 1T E 53X A 200,000,000 7T
(=ZZ—/\# : 200,000,0007T) °

ZMEARMRITRERERITRZMB A
AME THRAMBARAKR L R B IR
FTEERA - WAGRREAE —ERRENX
F o WM BARBRZERS - QAR
HMEREEERINERRE - AEEEEY
ERRAENABER: - R_FT—NFR
“ET-N\F=ZA=1+—H  ZHBERFLE
EREREREERBORE -

On 7 October 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with
a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. On 30 August
2016, the subsidiary entered into a supplemental agreement with the
bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019.
In comply with certain conditions, the facilities have been further
extended for two additional years to 8 October 2021. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal
charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(g)) and a first floating
charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At 31 March 2019,
the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2018: $200,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the subsidiary were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 March 2019 and 2018, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.
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21 RIEHEERE 21 Obligations under Finance Leases
R-E—NF=ZA=+—H ' A&EEHME At 31 March 2019, the Group had obligations under finance leases
FTREAERERIOT ¢ repayable as follows:

2019 2018

REHEE RIEAE REEE REHEE
NRBERE ARERE [(RERE  SFEeR

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr Fr Tt Tt
$°000 $°000 $’'000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 17 17 29 29
118 {HE2F R After 1 year but within 2 years - - 17 17
17 17 46 46
A BEFIESZH  Less: Total future interest expense
HBE - _
HEAENERE Present value of lease obligations 17 46
22 EHATHE 22 Government Lease Premiums Payable
R-ZE—NF=A=1+—08  ENB[FHE At 31 March 2019, the government lease premiums payable was
REFRHEALAE ¢ repayable as follows:
2019 2018
Tt Tt
$°000 $'000

1ERN(BEEEMERZE  Within 1 year (amount included in

FEsFERR) other payables and accruals) 66 63
16 18B2F R After 1 year but within 2 years 69 66
2F1Z{B5F N After 2 years but within 5 years 230 218
5F1& After 5 years 1,492 1,573
1,791 1,857
1,857 1,920

FERERT H BT B B AR (B R RELAE E Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a

FIFESE(=ZF—/)\F : 5E)5tH - fixed rate of 5% (2018: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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23 BEXRKf#E

(@

RS RS B

RE BTSN FEAK D HH
MR GER W EER - SRR a
HEBER - RARNFEVEFLH

23 Capital and Reserves

(@

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

{5z AR Pk FB 2 ) B Bh S 1B 51 H A the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
ViN/NE]| The Company
;&S R B
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Fx T T
$°000 $°000 $°000
R20175F4B1HH Balance at 1 April 2017
REER 121,830 381,687 508,517
AREEm A & Profit and total comprehensive
ZHEHWA L income for the year - 229,111 229,111
BRE—UBEE Dividends approved in respect of
HERRR S the previous financial year — (109,188) (109,188)
BRARYBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAAEE the current financial year — (109,188) (109,188)
7M2018%3H31HK  Balance at 31 March 2018 and
20185F4A1HIK 1 April 2018
fHER 121,830 392,422 514,252
AF A & Profit and total comprehensive
ZHEHWA B income for the year - 225,014 225,014
BR E—UEHFEE Dividends approved in respect of
HoERIAR S the previous financial year - (109,188) (109,188)
BRARTBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
EIRAAE the current financial year - (104,441) (104,441)
M2019%3H31HHK  Balance at 31 March 2019
REER 121,830 403,807 525,637
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23 BEARKf#E @

(b)

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

TN (b) Share capital
2019 2018
RHEE B
Number of Frx Number of SEIE
shares $°000 shares $'000

ERTRAR : Issued and fully paid:

A in Shares 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 121,830

BIEBBCABEHIDE1355 - AA In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
AN I EEE(E © Ordinance, the shares of the Company have no nominal value.
DB AE RIS E IR R The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
8 ' WAIEARRIKRE F&5FE K declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
R —F c HRARRHFBRE share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with
B FEROEZERZFER o regard to the Company’s residual assets.
BARAENEENAZ (c) Nature and purpose of revaluation reserve
EfREERIENEFEEEERNEE The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
MESHRBRREMYESH AR - surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
ZBEEERBERES © IRETE in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
ERBYHER  TAABNEGHAL Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
THEGBHEEARG RN o LFEE revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
N DIRA] © retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.
Al Ik (d) Distributability of reserves
RZZE—NF=A=+—H8 ' RBE At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves
ERCARMEDI ) FE 6B T E R available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

Al S IR T A R SRR A E A Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of

B8 114,245,000 (=& — N\ & ¢
101,620,0007T ) ° = R R E H
Mk&ERE  BEoRRAREER
0.227T(=F— )\ : §&0.237T) -
4 #£104,441,000c( = ZF — N\ F :
109,188,0007T) (Fi5E10) © FLEAR S,
RIRE R E R M RERARRE -

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $114,245,000
(2018: $101,620,000). After the end of the reporting period,
the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.22 per share
(2018: $0.23 per share), amounting to $104,441,000
(2018: $109,188,000) (note 10). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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23 BEARKf#E @

(e)

BEXEE
AEEEREANETRANRRER
SEFEKCEMEE N KMFES LA
Y MET E SRR K T AR TR RO AR 7% (B
BARIA R IEKABGREN T
HEDERIRTERER  WAEM
MR A THH M

AEBTFRRAMEREEREE -
BRER AR R EFKFEEFIN

BRI E mRE - EREREARNR
ORE BB MREEG 14 - W fE
%ﬁiﬁi ﬁ%§$m%°@§

—NERF-NF=ZA=1+—
H¢¢§'$%Em%% B M 15

AR B E BRI 7 B AR AL
% BEEHNEABELEXERSE
MEFBRKKEREEANGERE - Bt
ms AEBEAEERABBLEXE
ﬁﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁﬁuﬁéﬁ%#ﬁ%
BT R R 25 AR B —NF=
H=+—H && l%ﬁ$ﬁhm

\
&

ER14%(ZF—N\F : 1.4%) -
MmRITER RIS HBIBIRTTERE
¥43% 379,792,000 (=& — )\ F :

379,689,0007T) °

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2018:
1.4%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $379,792,000 (2018: $379,689,000).

Annual Report 2018-2019 3§

145



146

B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIBEREERNREE

AEEEELREBEETHRER R
BE - MEMEEREE o

BRAARSB AR - ARAEBEANL
BIR%EERANM SRR E R AMEE M
SEEAIT -

(@) FERR
FERAREXZHFTIRITHEANE
EMERARERZ P HELNE
o AKENEERREZRERK
B EEWRITERMRE KRS
EEY  ERECEREERR I
BB B SRR B EERE o

AREEREERRITERMRE MR
SEEVMELENEERRAR
RXHEFRAKBEREEERR
B A RFIEEFRNRIT R
e

SEUERAME - HRAEERE L
BB -T2BEEENTF  A&E
SELERIEERE - RINERPT
P BEEEDMRENRE B
ANEERES  YEEEEFPHEER
HAERPERLEREMKERE - R
R—REBAHEIE  ERERD
—RATRETERX - BHSEUF
B ARBEEEENER THEMN
RAEHARBUAETE) - REEWK
MEPA & (2= 18) 1ER R AR
R ERRARHEENEERR
RZE-—NF=RA=+—H ' BYR
RFEREEERD A ELIELER
o
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing

basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with sound
credit rating, for which the Group considers to have low credit

risk.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as
collateral over accounts receivable to cover potential exposure
to credit risk. At 31 March 2019, the expected credit losses for
accounts receivable were measured and loss allowance was

provided.
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (continued)
(@ Credit risk (continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not

provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group

to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liguidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the

end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:
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24 EBIEREMSEERAAEEm® 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)
b) FEELER @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2019
CrbSiiE 15/, BB1E BBk
BEE BenBEE  SEEQE BORE BORE BidsE

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
Tr T Tr Tr Tr T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiofERZ R EtER Other payables and accruals 30,825 30,846 30,846 - - -
BT Deposits received 197,094 197,004 63,599 44,309 75,094 14,092
RAMERE Obligations under finance leases 17 17 17 - - -
FOEF —BHE  Bankloan — secured 200,000 212,508 4,97 4,957 202,580 -

ERTE Government lease
premiums payable 1,791 2,701 - 159 417 2,065
429,721 443,166 99,433 49,425 278,151 16,157
2018

AHATR 1E R B i
FHE RenERE  RERAR EDYVES A i ek

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T S S S S S
$000 $000 $000 $1000 $000 $000
At EMFUREER Other payables and acoruals 27,913 27.9% 27.9% - - -
EliTe Deposs received 198,696 198,696 92308 55174 33999 12,218
HAREAR Obligations under finance leases 46 46 29 17 = -
RITEH —BHEA  Bankloan — secured 200,000 204,891 3216 201,675 - -

ERBE Government lease

premiums payable 1,867 2,859 - 159 47 2,223
428512 434,401 123,488 257,022 39,476 14,441
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIREBEERAABHBE@ 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair

(c)

PN
AEENNXEREZRERTE
e FBHIRITEREREBAEAR
REnENEER AEBEEEES
SHF DR LA T ()Frd -

0 F=ER
TRAJNHERELER K
SEFMAEARERFEAR
YRS SRR R -

Values (Continued)

() Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.

The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings with significant interest rate risk

exposure at the end of the reporting period:

2019 2018
BRAIE ilSIES
Effective Effective
interest rate T interest rate Tt
% $°000 % $'000
EEMEN Fixed rate borrowings:
FESEFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 1,857 5.00 1,920
FEME Variable rate borrowings:
RITER Bank loan — secured
— FHEH 2.48 200,000 1.61 200,000
FbC) Total 201,857 201,920
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(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BBREREER D ABE®

(©)

=2 [ B )

(i) WZF SHT
—NWE=RA=+—8 -
H%%ﬂ%%ﬁiﬂ/?%m
T—N\EF:75)ES -k
AR REERETE -
45 B I Rk 48 0 N [ B R
1855 ) K2 R B8 /i F1149835,0007T
(ZZ—/\£ : 1,253,0007T) °

i B R FE 5 AT B1) 7 ) S

(F“ B RE KA A %

A ) B R BB B 2 A (FIER
B A BB L o AR E
PR S HRREREE
FEITETAMELENE S
REMNERRNS @ AEER
Figm A (ARBEF) K&
AR Z A RSB EF B 8
FEZEBELMGE - EES

MRZR-Z— \FHRRANEE
#17 -
BERER

MR AEEBADH RSB T
& E D EEREEROINERR -

NRE
REENFESRTAHUEER
—NWErR_Z—-—N\F=A=+—H

NARBEINSAEAZEZNHET
fx

o
7

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

B EFME Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

(©

(d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 (2018: 75) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and the retained profits by approximately $835,000
(2018: $1,253,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest rates. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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25 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $30,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by Cushman & Wakefield
Property Management Limited for building and property management
of ISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2018: $3,000) was utilised
to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised forfeited
contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at 31 March 2019
and 2018.

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2019 2018

Fr T

$°000 $'000

EET4) Contracted for 1,440 _
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 R=ZE—NE=RA=+—H
£ 2 B B B B 7R R 5%

27 Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2019

2019 2018
BasE Fr Tt
Note $°000 $'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
EE&E Fixed assets
— REYE — Investment properties 320,260 321,500
M B A R A Interest in subsidiaries 180,105 188,234
500,365 509,734
RBEE Current assets
FEWERR ~ 5] RIBFEK Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 1,181 1,128
BE NESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 53,566 45,808
AEAFEMFT IS HR Current tax recoverable 29 =
54,776 47,026
RBAE Current liabilities
HivEN R RETER Other payables and accruals 8,487 6,476
BRG] Deposits received 2,874 2,579
NERFESTETAS Current tax payable - 400
11,361 9,455
REEERE Net current assets 43,415 37,571
EEAERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 543,780 547,305
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
AR EPNGIE O Amount due to a subsidiary 16,954 31,911
BELEHIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 1,189 1,142
18,143 33,053
EEFE NET ASSETS 525,637 514,252

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T



B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 R—ZZE—-—HhFE=HA=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

TE AR EBEHE AR TR @) Position at 31 March 2019 (continued)
2019 2018
FiaE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
EARR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
&N Share capital 23(b) 121,830 121,830
(0] Reserves 403,807 392,422
DB TOTAL EQUITY 525,637 514,252
EEeR T NFANAZTERZELET Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
AT o 27 June 2019.
2 EFE Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE FEELENN Director Director
28 HESARMRAEER 28 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party
BEFeRA AEER-ZE—NFE=H At 31 March 2019, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
=T HANEESARRERIEES BER ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
B REERAR o WATDRELR Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity
LU AR BT HRR o does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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B HKME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

EEAEEEE-—ZE-NF
—A=+—BHLEFEHRE
MBVIER] ~ AR EZEN
ARERE

HEAMBREBNMAN  EEFHOA
FRETSANREBE-E—NF=F
SH—BIHEEAR AR RE
REEIEET « FERITIRIR o LRSI
BFE TSI s AR EABRIAR -

29 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued But
Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2019
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT RS z%
A EHBRER
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BEBVBREER)E 165 HE ]
HKFRS 16, Leases

20191 A1H
1 January 2019

B (BRI REREZE S )R035 FIEHiRIEN N HEE M 20191 A1H
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
(BEBH B ELER 20155 201 74 B HH FE Buk 201941 A1H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle 1 January 2019

R LIEs] « SRR B BH AR
BREBUEBRFZEHRAREIETK

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T

The adoption of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.



EEMBHBE

Five Year Financial Summary

(L% % 5I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E Results
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
T Tz Tt T Frx
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $°000
'ON Revenue 656,904 680,544 673,445 645,617 622,729
REWMEME Profit/(loss) from operations
BEBOKE after valuation changes in
=mH(EE) investment properties 1,415,998 968,983 (76,061) 276,376 233,968
BhE KA Finance costs (2,398) (2,458) (3,374) (3,140) (4,855)
BRBLATRA (&) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,413,600 966,525 (79,435) 273,236 229,113
FriS %5t Income tax (88,526) (91,948) (90,721) (85,463) (81,214)
ARERERF,(B5H8) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,325,074 874,577 (170,156) 187,773 147,899
THIA LR : Attributable to:
— NAEIERRR — Equity shareholder of
the Company 679,995 438,966 (90,612) 108,126 73,669
— FEPERR AR ER#EZE — Non-controlling interests 645,079 435,611 (79,544) 79,647 74,230
1,325,074 874,577 (170,156) 187,773 147,899
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FFHMEBE Five Year Financial Summary
(L% % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BERERE Assets and Liabilities

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

T+t Tt Tt Tt Fr

$000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $°000

EEE Fixed assets 14,684,074 15,086,623 14,449,891 14,200,817 13,925,053

mENEEFE Net current assets 260,748 105,886 345,610 355,882 363,384

14,944,822 15,192,509 14,795,501 14,556,699 14,288,437

$R1TER — BEH  Bank loan — secured (200,000) — (200,000) (200,000) (200,000)
JE (< BT Government lease premiums

payable (2,037) (1,980) (1,920) (1,857) (1,791)

BT E AR Obligations under finance leases (104) (75) 46) (17) -

EILFIEE & Deferred tax liabilities (49,220) (56,756) (64,333) (72,190) (80,305)

EEZE NET ASSETS 14,693,461 15,133,698 14,529,202 14,282,635 14,006,341

&N Share capital 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830

H b {# Other reserves 7,422,995 7,643,585 7,334,597 7,224,347 7,084,387

7,544,825 7,765,415 7,456,427 7,346,177 7,206,217

FE R R R Non-controlling interests 7,148,636 7,368,283 7,072,775 6,936,458 6,800,124

ERAT TOTAL EQUITY 14,693,461 15,133,698 14,529,202 14,282,635 14,006,341

Tian Teck Land Limited XE#tZEHR A T
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